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mElER
Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it ARETFT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 6 67,617,835 61,978,158
HE AR Cost of sales (45,185,680) (42,218,703)
FEAH Gross profit 22,432,155 19,759,455
E bz Other revenue 7 667,617 541,222
E b g A Other net income 8 567,894 1,544,223
o EHA AR Distribution costs (14,150,828) (13,258,980)
THER Administrative expenses (2,290,999) (2,375,436)
B g A Other operating expenses (475,724) (619,395)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (348,639) (413,652)
e EE A ERRHEE Share of results of an associate 20, 21
and joint ventures 130,436 234,159
BRBE AT R Profit before taxation 9 6,531,912 5,411,596
AL Taxation 11 (1,958,228) (1,693,374)
REERF Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
ViN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 4,062,263 3,330,981
DB R A Non-controlling interests 511,421 387,241
R Ea F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
SRR Earnings per share 13 AR#S AE#S
HR Basic RMB72.23 cents =~ RMB59.25 cents
BE Diluted RMB72.15 cents =~ RMB59.20 cents

140 EEEERERAE
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZ2020F 12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R i F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
Hia2mls (F8) - Other comprehensive income (loss):
TEESIEZR B R EH Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (367) (74,877)
BERAABEIIRREEM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHWHREENER TE designated as at fair value through
NABEZE other comprehensive income 32,456 3,199
32,089 (71,678)
BAAAEARESIHEE Items that are or may be reclassified
mERFEIER - subsequently to profit or loss:
EH Z%E Exchange differences on consolidation 784,122 (131,046)
784,122 (131,046)
AEEFEHME2EmKE(EER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 816,211 (202,724)
AEEEEWNELLE Total comprehensive income for the year 5,389,895 3,515,498
B2 mEik S Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 4,847,840 3,135,740
DEAR R R Non-controlling interests 542,055 379,758
5,389,895 3,515,498
BRAREIER

2020 Annual Report ¥
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72020 12 A31 BHILEFE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,771,700 1,771,500
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,934,571 23,013,991
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,804,456 4,025,124
B EE Intangible assets 17 165,668 183,409
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
iR N Interest in an associate 20 94,802 139,537
EX-VNSIL Interest in joint ventures 21 627,031 889,065
BARBEYIERE Financial assets at fair value through profit
BHRERENESREE or loss 22 1,329,479 1,153,541
TR AAEBEYERE  Equity instruments designated as at
HL b 2 TR LA 2 R B B Y fair value through other
EHTHE comprehensive income 22 140,444 115,614
RIEHIEEE Deferred tax assets 34 429,027 407,171
R EITE HATF 50 Long-term time deposits 26 2,435,000 725,000
32,830,088 32,521,862
REBEE Current assets
ENy Inventories 23 3,347,676 3,445,075
FEM R FR Trade receivables 24 1,660,389 1,669,525
AT B I8 Tax recoverable 21,194 40,349
TER B REMBEUWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,240,898 2,852,469
HEIRIRITIF K Pledged bank deposits 26 37,832 32,830
IRITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 26 21,393,321 17,397,557
28,701,310 25,437,805
HEE Total assets 61,531,398 57,959,667
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
MR AR Capital and reserves
BITHRAR Issued capital 27 235,422 235,401
10w E Share premium 28 730,075 724,384
i Reserves 29 20,147,227 18,618,789
AEATRBRREGBREIR Total capital and reserves attributable
EEHTE to owners of the Company 21,112,724 19,578,574
LB RER Non-controlling interests 19 3,626,659 3,467,533
REREREEE Total equity 24,739,383 23,046,107
B MERERA T

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



A BFEIORE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
720204 12 A31 BIESE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it AR¥TTT ARBFor
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BRADEBEYIERIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
EnREENemEeE profit or loss 31 — 9,674
RHAEEEBE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 7,805,122 4,920,078
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 215,609 287,892
HEM3ERBEE Other non-current liabilities 39 — 40,000
BTIEMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 122,166 157,066
RIERIABE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,577,110 1,191,422
9,720,007 6,606,132
REBEE Current liabilities
BARBEEYIERE Financial liabilities at fair value through
EnlRRENemeE profit or loss 31 9,959 —
FETBR K Trade payables 35 8,146,974 7,678,035
HEiEMZFIERBUIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 10,079,278 10,761,450
EEBEZAEIHGm Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 5,891,412 7,454,381
HEmnsas Other current liabilities 39 40,000 —
HEBE Lease liabilities 16 101,191 199,664
EPIERMRIA Advance payments from customers 40 2,360,954 1,809,935
18 Taxation 442,240 403,963
27,072,008 28,307,428
waE Total liabilities 36,792,015 34,913,560
BRREZREEHAE Total equity and liabilities 61,531,398 57,959,667
BERBEE(EE) Net current assets (liabilities) 1,629,302 (2,869,623)
HEERARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 34,459,390 29,652,239

FI40E300 BV HRAVBHRREBESE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 309 were
CR2021F3A2B M AEREERE
WHNRATALTREEZEE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2021 and signed on its behalf by

H A& —EB Junichiro Ida
ZEF Director

$i% % WEI Hong-Ming
B Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2020F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

KRRREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERGE
8% HakREs b
BRA k%R Total Non- R
lssued Share 1 capitel and controling Total
capital premium Reserves resenes interestss equity
NRETL  AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETL
RMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 RMB000
R19E151R At 1 January 2019 235,04 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
TERER Profitfor the year - - 3,330,981 3,330,981 387,41 37180
A2 m (58 s Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERNEFLERE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - (65,490) (65,490) (9,387) (74.877)
BERDABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments designated
AENRERENERTA as at fair value through other
NMEEZED comprehensive income - - 3199 3199 - 3199
ERZE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (132,950) (132950) 1,904 (131,046)
Ht2AEELE Total other comprehensive loss - - (195,241) (195,241) (7.483) (202,724)
FEERAURAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3,135,740 3,135,740 379,758 3515498
BANARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contributions and dlstribution
EREERNYMZRE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 24,504 24,504 - 24,504
RERRETZET R % Shares issued under share option scheme 197 50,984 (14,080) 46,101 - 46,101
ERERER2018RERIEARE 2018 final and special dividend approved and paid - - 246332)  (2463321) (123646)  (2586,967)
197 59,984 (2452,897) (2392,716) (123,646) (2516,362)
FEERY Changes in ownershyp interests
HE-FE2ENEL Disposal of a non-wholy owned subsidiary - - - - 8601) 8,601)
EEUHZRHIENHELT  Changein ownership interest n subsiciaries
EEERY without change in control - - (817,926) (817.926) (138933  (1,556,8%9)
- - (817.926) (817.926) (747 534) (1,565,460)
BALIRRZRAEE Total transactions with owners of the Company 197 59984 (B2083) (321064 (871,180 (4081822
R2019%128318 At 31 December 2019 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578 574 3467533 23,046,107

144 EGEERERAE
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RE R EREREE)IR | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
#HZ=2020F12 A31 BILHFE Year ended 31 December 2020

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRs
48 JURRER k&
Yk RHEE Total Non- ERAE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRTL ARETZ  AERTX
RUBY00  RMBYO)  RMBUO  RMBUMO  RMBYUO)  RMBON

R200%F1518 At 1 January 2020 85401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
REREH Proft for the year - — 4062263 4062263 511,421 4,573,684
Hp2EHE(5R) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERFEAZEREM233)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations ore 33) - - 815 815 (1182) (367)
BERLABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTA as at fair value through other comprehensive
MEEZEH W 20) income (Note 22() - - 3245 32,456 - 3245
EiEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - 752,306 752,306 31,816 784,122
Hb2ENEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 785,577 785,577 30,634 816,211
REERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,847,840 4,847,840 542,055 5,389,895
BRNIRR RS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEA Contrbutions and distrbution
EREERNXAZIE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 15,988 15,988 - 15,988
REEREEE T RA Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
Hi#27) ]l 5,691 (133) 4,389 - 4,389
BRERER019KERES 2019 final and spedial dividend approved
ke and paid (ote 12) - - (3,330,981) (3,330,981) (365,506) (3,696,487)
| 5,691 (3,316,316) (3,310,604) (365,506) (3,676,110)
o 2 ] Changes in ownershyp iterests
ESUHBAEEONERT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
FRERBNZ 1) without change in control (e /9) - - (3,086) (3,086) (17423) (20509)
HRNTARRZRHEE Total transactions with owners of the Company N 5,691 (3319402  (3313690) (382,929) (3,696,619
R2020%5128318 At 31 December 2020 8540 730,075 20,147,221 112,74 3,626,659 24,739,383
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 10,429,950 9,591,258
EHFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,529,072) (1,343,821)
EENE Interest paid (347,024) (416,419)
RETHMEBRESFHE Net cash from operating activities 8,553,854 7,831,018
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 667,617 541,222
e RAEET Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (1,710,000) (725,000)
B E &R AIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 374,926 32,025
2 — g A =R Dividend received from an associate 20 62,279 —
BUIE A EEYIERKREIE  Dividend received from financial assets
HEREMNS/EERS  atfair value through profit or loss 135 3,253
HE—fBE AR ZFE  Proceeds from disposal of an associate — 195,107
HE—MAEEARZAE  Proceed from disposal of a joint venture — 225,408
HEZRAAEBEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
R AR IEH assets at fair value through
TRVEEZ RS profit or loss 22(a) 172,319 82,262
HEETHAREENE  Proceeds from disposal of equity
DEHMETEKREERIE  instruments designated as at fair value
RE/EE TS through other comprehensive income 22(c) — 3,578
BARAABEINERR Purchase of financial assets at
FIEFBRERENESEEE  fair value through profit or loss 22(a) (528,916) (740,033)
BAETLEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 (1,118) (158)
BAKREMEHE Purchase of investment properties (31,129) (241,733)
BBAMZE - s R E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,147,170) (1,788,104)
BAFHEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (87,961) (42,386)
HEWE WEREHEN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
FREEE G equipment and right-of-use assets 107,757 280,439
LEMB ARG Net cash inflow on disposal
WEmAHE of subsidiaries 41 176,812 836,581
BN ERZ FEE TR Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) 55,000 (67,000)
REZBHFARSFERE Net cash used in investing activities (2,889,449) (1,404,539)
R EERERAR
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AR ER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZE 20205612 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
(k3 AREFT ARBFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BNARRKREZEE Dividends paid to owners of

the Company (3,330,981) (2,485,015)
BLEEE#ESZ 2IRE  Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests 37(a) (399,145) (115,827)
RIRIE AT 2 Issue of shares under share

172 D option scheme 27 4,389 46,101

YTREEEE Payments of lease liabilities 37(a) (180,341) (181,253)
HIIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 6,627,179 5,848,166
EERITRAMER Repayments of bank and

other borrowings 37(a) (6,912,448) (6,473,583)
HEMBEEEZE8)FEE  Net movement of other short-

term borrowings 37(a) (789,060) 2,052,129
BITEIBIEE 2 FF11S Net proceeds from issuance of

unsecured notes 37(a) 3,369,999 —
AW E D R R Payment for acquisition of non-

controlling interests (20,509) (1,539,523)
AMEEE AR S FE Net cash used in financing activities (1,630,917) (2,848,805)
ReRESZEYN Net increase in cash and

byl cash equivalents 4,033,488 3,577,674

FRNZ2BERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year 17,430,387 13,840,421
EXg@g o Effect on exchange rate changes (32,722) 12,292
FRZBEESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year 26 21,431,153 17,430,387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2019 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(a)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

B EER
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(c)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(d)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
51to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
T EEE) Financial assets (Continued)
1) ZEEAAEGEEHE 1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

E

MESHEEMEAT A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it

MEKEEBREXREE A meets both of the following conditions and is not

FVPL » BI 4% # §5 Bk AN 5t designated as at FVPL:

=

() HEBEAREHE (i) it is held within a business model whose
& /A E N U E objective is to hold financial assets in order to
AR EREARE collect contractual cash flows; and
79 ;A

iy EAHNEREET (i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
BHELXHR SR dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
2 -ZEaREE principal and interest on the principal amount
BRAERAREER outstanding.
EEFE o

LEHEKATENSRE Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

EEERBERNRLT measured using the effective interest method and

2 WAlge g HIRAE - are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising

BE - 4R ETER B GH A from impairment, derecognition or through the

EEAM RSB RNE amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

MARHER -

IR B IR S AT 2 The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
NeEERIERITER bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
&IRE - EIRRITIER - term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2)

Mandatory FVOC]

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI
include unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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SBMIA(E) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)
T EEE) Financial assets (Continued)
4) HFVPLEFEH) % G & E 4) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

(%)
BESRTREMAEEE Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
BEIERNE EHEEeE as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
BT —HH IR E R =R reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
DI R EEVRERRTE that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
E AR FVPLETE liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

NEEMIRFVPLETEN S HE The Group's financial assets at FVPL include
EBEREES  FHEA investment funds, listed equity securities and unlisted
BHEMIEETMRAT S BRFS equity securities as further detailed in note 22 to the
RERE T RERMIFE22 © consolidated financial statements.

TEEE Financial liabilities

TR S 4% | ETERR Recognition and derecognition
CREBENERFHZHEER Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
HERANEBKAZTIEASY Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
&7 B — R RERR o instruments and on a trade date basis.

ERNEHEAH EYBEZERE A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
B R s B sk B2 B EA liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
B AR EERZEmEE - in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

EREER 163
2020 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

()

ERMIA(E)
EHREE)
DR E

TRAEEEVRAREED
fko &2 Rt A B IFIZFVPLET
E-AIMEEERBEBZRS
BRI -

AEENTRABEEREREMNK
AERHEMENRIE HEER
B EREBEEREMAEDA
& BREANEBEIELRER
mREENERAEIN A
TREEHEREQAREENS
MR HREABERMNEER
BENAGE  BRIFFTHROF
BAK - EUBR T AR
Bl °

ERFVPLEENSRBERER
BERRZZeMABE UK
HIATE FIRFVPLEERE - UK
BV BIRELEREIRME
AMEEEHPNOKRETSE
REFMEENCREE - 56
TARAREEE  TWH
EANWE BB TNBIEE
BahEROF L - /8
HEREBEEERKRMNIETIER
FVPLETER 2 RIBENAAE
BB EHMEEBKER
2% BRIFEEEESHERZE
RESSERNSEAA o Hf
2HEREP 2NN ETFE
BB ABRE - RIEHERE
it EEEEE ARE
wmH R EEREAAEBERE
=D FSIR o

164 EEEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(ii)

(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

T EERAMIEHZHE(E) Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

B ER Definition of default

TEBRBUTHEXAREE The Group considers the following as constituting an event

REREEENNENELH of default for internal credit risk management purposes

RELEBET  MRFTEIN as historical experience indicates that the Group may not

TEAZENSRIAE K& receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the

kA2 RO RKEEN financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

EREHE -

(i) AEBRRI SKAEINEL AR IE (i)  information developed internally or obtained from
BHEBBEREEATA external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
BT MHEEA 8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
HEAEB(TEEXRE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FANEMERD) =k or

(il REHFERMBRL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TEFDT NEBRE - Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

B oA E R EARE 90 Kk default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

BEEHNBERE  BRIEANEER 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BEREANXHNERERF supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRENZEET BEHE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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() SWMIAE) (j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

T EERAMIEHZHE(E) Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

M EERRBEELINE) Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

BEBFMEE  MRZEE Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that

TEAHREAREAEEEEER the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased

By  AEBERBREZZESRMT significantly since initial recognition if the financial

BEMEERR O VHREREL instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

REEELN - reporting date.

KEERR Low credit risk

ETHEBERT & T EwrE A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

FABREERR : if:

() ELHRBIEK: () it has a low risk of default;

(i) ERABERKEHEEH (i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
NBITHENRERES contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and
% :

(i) FREALEMEGZE ST (iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
Ao g BT —FE @ % in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
EEFABRTEOR SR the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
SRS - flow obligations.

FENERE B ERERMFE43 As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial

W ZEAE AR RE B statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,

A 77 I IE N 5B E i fE Yk related parties and certain other receivables are determined

wHE BEKEERE - to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

B EER
2020 Annual Report ¥

171



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

()

EWMIAE)
EHEEREMERZFE(E)
FERESREEE)

(d) ERAFEERESEA
Hib 5 EM -

(e) HMRMBRZE ZEEE
ERERTISHEX -

(f)  AKRBBIFMBARSIAK
TREE  URBEEES
BE#AE -

EAKEBREREBEHANED
CREERMIITLOEMEE
MAEKRSRER - AEEM
HZEREE - ARERES
MUEERMA Y EE R &ERE T
MBR EemEERNF
By 0 55 AR T AR R o AN SR EITR R
-§ 308 kA LN R
B2 RIFEAKE R EFHIEA
BRF - MEENEREEDR
ZBITAI W EIE FITEIR
2 WHEEEBLTEBX
BER - ERBERCIN SR
BERERPHER o

)
2k,
Be
-7

E%’

172 EGEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

m

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and delivery of instant noodles, beverages and
instant food products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs,
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(¢) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles and beverages is recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group's performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customers until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payment from
customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s

entities that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the thee Group's interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(q) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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0]

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(¢)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years
Over the leasehold
period

1 year to 5 years

Land use right in respect of
leasehold land
Machinery and other equipment

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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0]

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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HE(#E) (r) Leases (Continued)

TERILTAN — SEHE As lessor — operating lease

REBBEBBREERSE The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
95k 2 #X IR KO E 1R E JE requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.
RREWEERS -

KEBHE B AT E%E A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
BB AT E AR - W HER a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
HEMRBE T MEN R ERE considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
ENREAEFHEERENKZ to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
—HBD o new lease.

ETIEA (s) Employee benefits

2B S iE Short term employee benefits
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

EATE  BEHSBERRE material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
HER o
SRE R E Defined contribution plans
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3 AR R B R AR TR R
EIMBEBAES B ENH
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The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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®

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(u)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(u) Taxation (Continued)

(v)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.
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(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(©)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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ERNBRELEARREH (x) Future changes in HKFRSs
RAGEFBRERER - K At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
SEYRRFHRATIEES statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
SR A BEHERAFE H K revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
W2 ] MBS year, which the Group has not early adopted.
WELEA MRE -
ERUBHEENE 168 EHTREEEL Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
2B BeEsl Concessions !
BASTEE 9% - FIREEYE Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
EEEBRE Eal 00 HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 Reform — Phase 2 1

F4% F1% £9%
RE 1652163

BESTENZ 165 IERERRAL Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended
B3] FigsE Use B!
EEGIERSIR VB BAANZRAS Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ©!
ERBBREER S SRR RL Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
E35 2B Framework B!
eS| 20182 2020 EE 0 Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle B!
JERHE HKFRSs
BASTENZ IS BEAERTDY Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
I3 EiER Current or Non-current
EEUBHEEAE TS RBRAHY HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts @
EEBREEAE 0 REBRARENTN Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets
REASEL ARDRZEZBE 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
E285 2B ERTED Associate or Joint
Venture ¥
t M2020F6 A1BE s 2% m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
8 2 IR AR AR 2020
@ R2021E1A1B S 2% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
1 2 FE M AR 2021
B R2022F1A1Bs 218 H Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
9 2 IR R AR 2022
@ R2023FE1A1BH 2% @ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
1 2 FE M AR 2023
&l £ A BT sl The effective date to be determined
KAFIEETBAR AR R The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
WFE] RGBT HmE adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
AT EARER 2B ER will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
EEFRNERTE - information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the
market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the
replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark). In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an
acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(ii)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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RANBZHITEECOHEY AKEF The Company's executive directors have been identified as
TELEBRRE KEDIW 2N the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
EoEER 2 mELAIBEE 2R has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
BAERRNBZHTES 2 BEER R information based on the regular internal financial information
B KEBEZZEEREERE D IE reported to the Company’s executive directors for their decisions
BAERE RFEHERE - ERNA about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
FEREBERETEERBERI9% N and review of these components’ performance. The Company's
P EEEEREARNMETT - A executive directors consider the business principally from a product
NBIZHITEETFEUE BT perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
FEAREBZEBW A EAREE as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are conducted
BoOEEROELE . AJRE 7KL in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
DEHEN AHFEN R EEMD operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
MEBBAEAFERE R  EEZEK - others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
KEGCEWEFERERSZ YRk holding, properties investment for rental purpose, logistics and
SIRNREET o supportive functions.

HMITEEURFEERLE DI 2 NE For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
& 7 555 B LA 2 B B3 A oz K Kz FE (G Bée segments and allocating resources between segments, the
ENRINEERAEENRADE 2 executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
ST A ) FTE G F (BB e based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
KESHERPEAELRTHAER results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
I o (expenses), net.

DEEEREREBEENAERZNLE Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
BRNRERZRADEEEER IR in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
FVPLER B /) & Rl & & M 18 F FVOC| include financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI. Segment
ZEMEE - »BEEBEHRET liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of employee
BAHEEZEBEEBRINABERE - benefit obligations.

2R 7 B HY S E 2 AR AN N iE R A Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
HEIEEB 2RO Pzt accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
HAEFRNGEEMBHERMEIE the Group's accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
Tert BRI AEENSTHE consolidated financial statements.

_ﬁ °

EEMEMNENIRE R EMEZ The geographical location of the Group's customers is based on
Do KREBZRIO% KBINEEF the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
ZWHEA RN ANER R KL E LA revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
EHPEOER - RE NEFA customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s
EWMIERBEE BB DILFVPLE operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
®EE E RIEEFVOCI Z NI R assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
PR WHEKEE—IFEFHUK FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
AMMEAREE U 2R 10% KA L - customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEDEE Segment results:
2020
R
HEs Inter-
Instant #m Hfitt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT ANREFH ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2 Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts with
customers 29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
W52 g Timing of revenue
recognition:
TEE—EER5 Recognised at a pointin time | 29,501,133 37,265,751 710,983 — 67,477,867
B 251 Recognised over time — — 58,446 — 58,446
29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
REMRFEEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REREERMEZHESWA  Rental income from investment
properties — — 81,522 — 81,522
D ER 2 Ma Inter-segment revenue 8,777 14,172 1,207,928  (1,230,877) —
okl Segment revenue 29,509,910 37,279,923 2,058,879  (1,230,877) 67,617,835
PREE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after
finance costs 3,980,673 2,654,056 (184,740) (6,970) 6,443,019
eI DB A RNAIEE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (507) 141,383 (10,440) — 130,436
AR ZFZH Unallocated expenses, net — — (41,543) — (41,543)
BRBEATEF (B58) Profit (loss) before taxation | 3,980,166 2,795,439 (236,723) (6,970) 6,531,912
HA Taxation (1,246,935) (689,976) (21,317) —  (1,958,228)
REEZRF(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,733,231 2,105,463 (258,040) (6,970) 4,573,684
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HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

DEEE : (£)

Segment results: (Continued)

2020
R
Rid il Inter-
Instant #m Hfitt  segment @t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT AREFH ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
BE Assets
HHEE Segment assets 25,182,638 31,152,963 5,007,269  (2,003,228) 59,339,642
BeNRER Interest in an associate — 94,802 — — 94,802
AEAER Interest in joint ventures 375 598,337 28,319 — 627,031
APHEE Unallocated assets 1,469,923
HEE Total assets 61,531,398
8% Liabilities
NEBEE Segment liabilities 9,073,005 16,942,691 12,413,035  (1,758,882) 36,669,849
*PEBRE Unallocated liabilities 122,166
BEE Total liabilities 36,792,015
Hirg g Other information
TEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 814,164 2,201,882 222,308 (90,322) 3,148,032
BARAR Capital expenditures 502,934 1,725,297 38,029 — 2,266,260
FIEMA Interest income 433,587 284,319 17,015 (67,304) 667,617
FIEXH Interest expenses 20,189 93,293 305,924 (70,767) 348,639
ME - HER Impairment loss of
R AEER property, plant and
equipment 16,514 49,677 — — 66,191
LERB AT Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries — 117,941 128 — 118,069
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SIEE () Segment results: (Continued)

2019
PR EE
FEME Inter-
Instant R Hith segment et
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W #E Revenue
REFENEE 2 WE Revenue from contracts
with customers 25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
WERT 2K Timing of revenue
recognition:
X B2 Recognised at a point in time 25,295,434 35,580,490 703,287 — 61,579,211
BB R 2 51 Recognised over time — 312,775 — 312,775
25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
REMRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REREUEHE Rental income from
Pk ON investment properties — 86,172 — 86,172
D EE WE Inter-segment revenue 4,988 19,131 1515469  (1,539,588) —
SEWE Segment revenue 25,300,422 35,599,621 2,617,703 (1,539,588) 61,978,158
PHEE(CMIRMBER)  Segment results after
finance costs 3,364,881 1,549,877 247,413 (6,202) 5,155,969
[ERIS N B MAERAIELE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 483 242,752 (9,076) — 234,159
FREZFWA Unallocated income, net — — 21,468 — 21,468
BRBLADER Profit before taxation 3,365,364 1,792,629 259,805 (6,202) 5,411,596
HIE Taxation (1,166,264)  (453,607) (73,503) —  (1,693,374)
KEE M Profit for the year 2,199,100 1,339,022 186,302 (6,202) 3,718,222
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DEEE : (£)

Segment results: (Continued)

2019
Qs
FiEME Inter-
Instant R Hith segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'000
BE Assets
NEEE Segment assets 22,790,688  29,095483 4,010,878 (235,139) 55,661,910
BeEnAER Interest in an associate — 139,537 — — 139,537
AEDNAER Interest in joint ventures 882 849,424 38,759 — 889,065
AOBREE Unallocated assets 1,269,155
BEE Total assets 57,959,667
=l Liabilities
AHAE Segment liabilities 9,294,961 15,805,462 10,482,964 (826,893) 34,756,494
*HEEE Unallocated liabilities 157,066
#afE Total liabilities 34,913,560
HingEs Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 777,990 2,324,077 211,848 (56,144) 3,257,771
BARHY Capital expenditures 440,974 1,355,033 278,984 — 2,074,991
FlEMA Interest income 326,958 228,758 18,854 (33,348) 541,222
e Interest expenses 3,967 136,873 310,551 (37,739) 413,652
mE - KER Impairment loss of property,

B RERR plant and equipment 35,097 112,555 4,398 — 152,050
DEMRB AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 372,208 94,537 162,144 — 628,889
HEAEARME Gain on disposal of

a joint venture — — 223,150 — 223,150
PEBEA TR Gain on disposal of
an associate 119,593 11,460 — — 131,053
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 667,617 541,222
2020 2019
et ARETFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 171,762 160,451
LFVPLEEEMS@MEZE  Change in fair value of financial
NABEZEFR assets at FVPL, net (40,905) 20,774
HEMEERNAEZEE) Change in fair value of investment
properties 14 200 3,674
HRFVPLERIEM SR AMB 2  Change in fair value of financial
NABEZEFER liabilities at FVPL, net 31 (285) 188
WFVPLERIEMESRMEEZ  Dividend income from financial
A& FIUA assets at FVPL 135 3,253
HEMB QRS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 118,069 628,889
ek NS g Gain on disposal of an associate — 131,053
HEAE R RME Gain on disposal of a joint venture — 223,150
BT 18 B Government grants 160,431 314,116
HEWME W NEMER  Loss on disposal of property, plant
FRAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use
assets (77,332) (92,900)
[& 5 Uy 5 58 Exchange gain, net 29,159 15,511
Hith Others 206,660 136,064
567,894 1,544,223
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MR (GEA) TPIIEB R -

This is stated after charging (crediting):

2020 2019
AR¥FT ARMEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E A Finance costs
AR S FRNBEEE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
MEMERZFEZH wholly repayable within five years 315,096 363,850
ERSFNAERBHEEL Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMER 2 wholly repayable over five years
MBS 15,144 27,944
HEBBELHHBEM  Finance costs on lease liabilities 18,399 24,625
348,639 416,419
B RIS EARAA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
Wz - MR REE property, plant and equipment at weighted
INREFHE R xR average capitalisation rate of Nil
_RE (2019:3.71%)
(20194 :3.71%) — (2,767)
348,639 413,652
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hig B Other items
ETHRA(BIFEEZEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e KR Salaries and wages 7,011,729 6,347,895
NEREERN 2 Equity-settled share-based
FRIE payment expenses 15,988 24,504
RIKEKA - Pension costs:
REMRNKETE > Defined contribution plans* 240,160 648,730
AEBMETE Defined benefit plans (3,690) 13,623
ZEABE - Auditor's remuneration:
EZEHN Audit fee 9,719 8,961
IEZER Non-audit fee 477 —
EEFERA Cost of inventories* 45,185,680 42,218,703
e - Depreciation:
WE - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 2,835,810 2,952,224
FEHEEE Right-of-use assets 305,819 299,141
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets
(BEBRFERD ) (included in distribution costs) 6,403 6,406
ME - MEKEEZRME  Impairment loss of property,
EiE (BB RRN A& plant and equipment
ER) (included in other operating expenses) 66,191 152,050

* FRERELR R EREHKBER *
FEFFRIZ G IR 2 BATHERS - %7
B (30 AR B AR R I 55 2 R

F o

EEGFREKAF OIS THA ?
Y BERRE FHEEE
CHEREEEEBEHARK
4,748,077,0007T (20194 - A R

4,822,750,0007T) * iZE % BB INiAT

granted.

AL LT IR Z & FIKGRET

The Group received government subsidy related to COVID-19
in the form of a reduction in social security contribution, which
was recognised as reduction to the related expenses when it was

Cost of inventories includes RMB4,748,077,000 (2019:
RMB4,822,750,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation of
intangible assets which amount is also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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AANRAEERITREZR YN R The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
FEffzBemezEmT - Company'’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2020
BREXHR
ET e
HE o5
i DRA%ZH  Retirement
Hfpe 238 payments and
EZhe Salaries ozl Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABRTE  ARETR  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETZ
RMBOO)  RMBO0O  RMB000  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBU0O

HITEE: Executive directors:

RE% Wei Hong-Ming 689 5,365 1,829 1,184 - 9,067

#mE—% Junichiro Ida 552 165 - - - n

REK Wei Hong-Chen 1,034 5175 1,587 1,184 - 8,980

BRER Koji Shinohara 345 165 - - - 510

BEEE Yuko Takahashi 345 165 - - - 510

B Tseng Chien 345 653 - - - 998
BUFHTEE - Indlependent

non-executive dlrectors:

it Hsu Shin-Chun 345 8 - - - 18

3] Lee Tiong-Hock 345 83 - - - 428

AHZE Hiromu Fukada 345 83 - - - 428
TR - Chief executive officer:

EfE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 18,211 3,198 6,129 - 27,538

4,345 30,148 6,614 8,497 - 49,604

EEBEBREENR2020612A31HE Mr. James Chun-Hisen Wei retired on 31 December 2020 and Mr.
R BREFELEN2021F1A1H Chen Yinjang was appointed as the chief executive officer on 1
BERERITIEE - January 2021.
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2019
BIREINER
EXRRRS
STEI
4R IRAEAE  Retirement
Eftile LA payments and
EEY5 Salaries feil Share-  contribution
Directors' andother  Discretionary based  topension aif
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total
NREFT  ARETT  AREFT ARETT  AREFT  ARETIL
AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
HITEE - Executive directors:
R Wei Ing-Chou - - - 473 23,902 24375
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 690 7763 3% 1,189 - 9,998
gl Junichiro Ida 552 21 - - mn
REX Wei Hong-Chen 1,036 6,763 356 1,189 - 9,344
BRER Koji Shinohara 345 01 - - - 566
AR Yuko Takahashi 144 138 - - 282
REEE Teruo Nagano 201 8 - - - 284
Mz Lin Chin-Tang 345 10 - - - 455
2 Tseng Chien - - - - -
BUFHTEE: Indlependent non-executive directors:
3 Hsu Shin-Chun 345 110 - - 455
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 345 10 - - - 455
RER Hiromu Fukada 345 110 - - - 455
TR - Chief executive officer:
EfE James Chun-Hsien Wei - 18211 3,299 6,161 27,671
4348 33,840 4011 9,012 23,902 75,113
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ZREM A R2019F1 A1 BHE =

RRBAITESE o

ZRE N £ AR 20191 A1 B BHE
AEBEXFE RB - BEBELLE

RERAKEER °

BEREEN2019FE1 A1 ES

ERARRBAITES -

MR2019F8H9H  RHEH L E
HEARBITEEMSBBEEL

ERZER/RRRRATES -

MN2019%F12 8310 KiFEE4E
BIARBRTESMEELLE

RERARBITES °

MR2020%F K 2019412 A31 B IEF
Bl EEERSURRTFATRES

BB -

AEBLAERDFEZELSURH
ALTWMAXSEMNMEHEES
MAREEEN EHERBESTK

ERALEHRE -
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Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as the chairman of the Group on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Teruo Nagano resigned and Mr. Yuko Takahashi was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 9 August
2019.

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang resigned and Ms. Tseng Chien was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 31 December 2019.

No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.



=
AR

AEEBESZaFALBRE2NE
E(2019F 3y EFF ) R1TH B
H-EMesBEaRN X R2fIA
(20194 - 1f7) - E8R2(1(2019
F )N ZHESFBET

SRR MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year, two directors (2079: three directors) and the
chief executive officer whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above and two individuals (2079. one). Details
of the emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2079: one)
are as follows:

2020 2019

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FehHMME Salaries and other emoluments 10,118 5,075

VAR 1 324 2 5R38 Share-based payments 1,395 1,850
BREIZ T REER Retirement payments and contribution

RIKEFTEIHER to pension scheme — —

TE4T Discretionary bonuses 5,662 2,124

17,175 9,049

S 24020194 ¢ 147)BEH AL
2RI :

The emoluments were paid to the two (2079: one) highest paid
individuals as follows:

EEAH
Number of individuals

< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2020 2019
ANR#7,104,928 T2 RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985

A% 7,548,985 ¢ (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

(8,000,001 B LE

8,500,000 7T) 1 —
ANR#8,881,159 L& RMBS,881,159 to RMB9,325,216

A% 9,325,216 7T (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

(10,000,001 BTE

10,500,000 7T) — 1
AR#9,769,275 1F RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332

AER%10,213,3327C (HK$11,000,007 to HK$11,500,000)

(11,000,001 B TE

11,500,000 7T) 1 —

2 1
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2020 2019
AR FTT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
rEEHER Current tax
REIERTSH PRC Enterprise income tax
AEE Current year 1,460,775 1,245,211
AR D e (Z51) BE Under provision (Over provision) in prior years 26,443 (17,587)
1,487,218 1,227,624
ERNEH Hong Kong profits tax
REE Current year 206 —
BB IE (A7 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EERBEERERFHE Origination and reversal of temporary
differences, net (19,387) (18,286)
RSB F BL2 Effect of withholding tax on the net
INT iy mp SNz g o ;
%;2? ADEREFEL  Gistributable earnings of the
RiEt Group's PRC subsidiaries 490,191 484,036
470,804 465,750
AEEHIBEEE Total tax charge for the year 1,958,228 1,693,374

MEeEHBSY M HARARAERZ
WA BT IR IR -

HZE2020F 128318 &EFEH
ERBRARFISTREIEMTES - £
MARFIERMESET - GEBDE
BB 200 B TTHEE1R8.25% R
P - M200 BB ITIA EOFIEG
1 16.5% BB R BT -
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax regime.
Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
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RBIAREZ B A RMHEENFER
EMIEPM AT X RB25% (2019
F:25%) RIBVHE - BHEB
EHBE R LIS A
RRANEHREATAFREERIEE BN
W sR R RE ) 3@ A0 ) (BT #4[2011]58
%)+ iz pA AR B K B P ER b [ ([ 7S B
e |)WBE RSB EEZENINER
B HEpBEEXXEWAL
EBUWART70% A LR+ F£2011
FE2020FFE - HIE15% K E
ERMEMWBEMRER - Bt - K
EENEPHE ZMBRATRES
15% (20194 : 15%) 120204
AR238  BEVERE  S@HESE
BB SR B 7% 4B R A B KR R
N e 78 30 K 5 B B RS A A B R
FERE R E A (BB (2020123 5% ) fiz
REMME I ERERFE - HEt
BEEENETERAMMEERKA
B160% LA - R2021F1A1HZE
2030F 12 A3TEHHHEREERR

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2079: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “"Western
Region”) with over 70% of principal revenue generated from
the encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020 (the "Prefential Tax Relief”). Accordingly, certain subsidiaries
located in the Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate
of 15% (2079: 15%). On 23 April 2020, the Ministry of Finance,
the State Taxation Administration and National Development
and Reform Commission jointly issued an announcement ([2020]
no.23) to extend the Preferential Tax Relief from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2030 for those foreign investment enterprises
located in the Western Region with over 60% of principal revenue
generated from the encouraged business activities.
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NEE 7 BT A GHEAEERIB The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERWAT - for the year as follows:
BERL HE Reconciliation of tax expense
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B g A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596
BRABUEERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20194F - 25%) in the PRC (2019:25%) 1,632,978 1,352,899
JEIREtE R AEARIELSE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (32,609) (58,540)
TR Non-deductible expenses 74,467 186,145
EERBUA Tax exempt revenue (6,062) (101,253)
ANERIEE 12 Unrecognised tax losses 62,542 105,055
RERGRER Unrecognised temporary differences (16,558) (12,107)
MR BEY RFERBIARE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (142,097) (179,407)
1R EE R 2 B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
NGRS e profits of the Group's PRC
TR (Hfat 34) subsidiaries (Note 34) 490,191 484,036
P 78 56 4[5 4 R BB B Effect of tax relief on PRC
NR)ZFBUR R subsidiaries in Western Region (96,845) (28,761)
LARTHFE VIR (ZET) B Under provision (Over provision) in prior years 26,443 (17,587)
Hith Others (34,222) (37,106)
REZRIBRF X Tax expense for the year 1,958,228 1,693,374
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Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

the year:
2020 2019
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REHE BRI R Final dividend proposed after the end of
i QO =Y 3/ [
Exiﬁ ?Z}E?E;f _ the reporting period of US5.54 cents
PO, ' (2019: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
R BB 4.24 F) 2,031,132 1,665,491
R B RK 2555 Special dividend proposed after the end of
QoL QO =Y 3/
Exiea ?Z}E?E;f _ the reporting period of US5.54 cents
o 7 L ' (2019: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
R BB 4.24 F) 2,031,131 1,665,490
4,062,263 3,330,981

R2021F3 8228 M & &
EEEARBREIREERE
AR 5.54 U KK HARK B
LB 5543 o aith R
BEEMEERNEERREAS
BFRB - BRI ABEZE 2021
FI2AMBIEFENRKER
oo WERERIRE RARHRK
BRIZEMBRREFRTRE
FERAR B -

RAF AL R 3 BRI £
—HREETARAKRRZIE

At meeting held on 22 March 2021, the directors
recommended the payment of a special dividend and a final
dividend of US5.54 cents and US5.54 cents per ordinary
share respectively. The proposed special and final dividend
will be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in
the year ending 31 December 2021 if it is approved at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend have not been recognised as dividends payable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

B year:
2020 2019
AR#FT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
RARF AR EMIKEEBER  Final dividend in respect of the previous
M BERE ARG E A financial year, approved and paid during
EixEimix4.24 =0 the year, of US4.24 cents
(2019 : FREFER (2019: US3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 %) 1,665,491 1,231,661
ARG Rt KR BB R Special dividend in respect of the previous
BB EERFRIIE A  financial year, approved and paid during
Bk EmEAR4.24 FA0 the year, of US4.24 cents
(20194 : 3.20 %) (2019:U53.20 cent) per ordinary share 1,665,490 1,231,660
3,330,981 2,463,321
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AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mzzt8 - follows:
(a) BREREF (a) Basic earnings per share
2020 2019
RAGIREFAENG Profit attributable to ordinary equity
A (ARETT) shareholders (RMB’000) 4,062,263 3,330,981
BEITEBR 2 N Weighted average number of ordinary
TR (T A%) shares ('000) 5,624,061 5,622,019
BREAEF (ARE D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 72.23 59.25
(b) BREFER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2020 2019

RATIEFANEMEEF  Profit attributable to ordinary equity

(ARETT) shareholders (RMB'000) 4,062,263 3,330,981
BB E Weighted average number of ordinary
(%) (FiR) shares (diluted) ('000)
E#TEERZ IE Weighted average number of
FH R & ordinary shares 5,624,061 5,622,019
RNARERES ZFE  Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 6,187 4,831

BR:TESR#EEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

BRI T shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 5,630,248 5,626,850
BRHELF(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 72.15 59.20
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2020 2019

AR TFT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

DREE At fair value

NG At beginning of the year 1,771,500 1,119,000

RE-BA Addition - purchases — 648,826

NREBEZEE Change in fair value 200 3,674

REER At the end of the reporting period 1,771,700 1,771,500
(a) AEEZHREMEHE B (@) The Group's investment properties, which consist of

FAMEREESAREER
T fE R AR E ST
172 R 38167855 I 1686
55 DA K2 A B 2R3 T A O 5 1l
BRI EFEFNARIARA
A o

AEEN2EHEREESET
REMREHWE  FHOHEBR2
E3F XEEREHERR
VAR IR AR TR 2 IR 4 o

XELEHE 2 HEWAFT
FNMR B M IR RE () ©

BAKEEALRRHASE
Wk BRESE  AEE— %
GUHLERE  ALTE
TEBIE - ERBERAERE
BRI o YRR B
RIS A 2 A S (B -

commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated in No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 2-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(r) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HEZARFRBENKZEH
BT

—
[«3]
=

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2020 2019

AR#FT ARETFT

MN12A831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 28,316 38,875
F2HF In the second year 8,906 18,939
FEIF In the third year 4,005 6,437
E4F In the fourth year 2,166 1,436
F5F In the fifth year — 718
43,393 66,405

AABEETTENFMER

HERELEMENAAEBE
- RSB ER T A8
EXOEROMGEEMETTRE
B -EEERBUEXSER
MG EMZ A IE - BYEE
B i (B B AT DA R AR B AR B ) B
BaA - HEAREENMOE
B RfAES  BEVER
BERALEunTSEEEZ
ZH AL BESNEENLR
MOBELUMEOEMBEBBR
AHEFTS - BERFTAMEARL
RS ELEMRZ LR
MBUMEERAENRE
X BERE G ERD AT A AR
HREMEZARNETRRARE
‘IR - £EEVMELEE
B MENRSRRERES
HBERME °

222 EEMEZERERAF

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.
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AABEFENFEREE)

AEBzREEEHENRTL
BEAENHEEAABENS
3R RAFEREALEBAHA
BEEMRBIS BRI 3EH -

BRAREMEFHEEBEZTA

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment

properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value

hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information on significant

R AEENT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2020 2020
RABRE A AR
ARBENERE

REMEE HEEROREEHA BEATABASHNE@A Relationship of

Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

R EERRE  WaERBE

B A A Income capitalisation

(B approach

Commercial o

properties and car EEWA -

parks in Shanghai The key inputs are:

T ER 1% B O ZEIEWAERL  BANE FANERENE®REER

and Tianjin

Reversion yield

LEESRAERNAENERER
OB HRAVEREESHNE
TWHEEE FE DRI H5.00% K
4.50% @ ERFAD B R5.00% %
6.00% £23.00% ©

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in
Tianjin respectively.

L g REUEHEN
ARBEAEETHK k2
TRIR

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
RAERBH @ AR
DRBENERE
REMEME HEROREEHA BEARTAEASG S EA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
iz AE BAYE

Daily market rent

224 EEMEZERERAF
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ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZHENENREZ - 015
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T AR HEEETE
FRHRDBREARETIOTEA
R#1M20T R ARK3.00TEA
R¥4.857T ¢

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.20
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.85 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  wHELERYEEY
xR zHENENEE - mARK
F# . FERREEEEELNE
AmsHED R ARKE27.09T
MR 16.007T ©

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.09 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.00 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
ogcREUEHENDR
REEFERLA RZT
?)\E\O

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2019 2019
AABAG L@ AR
AREENBER
REMEWE HEROREEHA EATABASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R EERkRZE WEERLE
B ERYEMN Income capitalisation
EES approach
Commercial o
properties and TR
car parks The key inputs are:
i Shanghai A HERE LENBSYNERL  BENERES FRAOESEOESEES T
and Tianiin BRERNAENEEALOA BAN BSRAMEHENLLEENE

Reversion yield

5 A

Daily market rent

$REESNEEREXELENAIR
5.00% % 4.50% * & X815 Al 55.50%
£6.00% £23.00% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental derived
from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary rental
potential of the commercial properties
and car parks of 5.00% and 4.50%
respectively in Shanghai and 5.50%
to 6.00% and 3.00% in Tianjin
respectively.

BAYE

ZRINRE HHERURBERNEENE
A ZENERNRE  WARMRFE - b
BRXEBRANEGATSHS]ARA
HHERET BT A AN REARKT.07
TEARENIGTRARE3IITEA
R%4667 ¢

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into account
the time, location, and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging from
RMB7.07 to RMB11.16 per square
meter per day on lettable area basis
in Shanghai and from RMB3.17 to
RMB4.66 per square meter per day on
lettable areas basis in Tianjin.

BT RZIA

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRNEEMSHEEERLT &
SREUEHENDABENER
EA R

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.

B EER
2020 Annual Report ¥

225



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b) 2AABEMFENTGERRE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
TG WA R
DABENRR
REMEME HERGREEHA EAFTABASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FES
ZRIKHE HHREBRNEFENER S
ZAMENREZ  wAmkFR - LER
REBEFENNGETZREAHRA
R 26 71T RAR%16.007T «
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB26.77 per unit for car
park spaces in Shanghai and RMB16.00
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.
EEE
WERRE  Electrical
KAERLH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HRIR
Freehold ’¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction )
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment  in progress Total
ARBTL  AREFL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARKTE  ARETZ
RMBU00  RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO
(fiita) (fih)
(Note a) (Note b)
REERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
BZ2019812A318  year ended 31 December 2019
%:35
REY] At beginning of the year 116,283 7832877 15419572 52,673 855,562 650,663 24,927,630
AE Additions - 49,469 134,497 11,806 617,665 977,434 1,790,871
REEEMH) Impairment loss (Aot ¢/ - — (152,050 - - - (152,050)
B Transfer upon completion - 816,780 210279 6,814 108,115 (1,141,989) -
hE Disposdls —  (110308)  (169750)  (13622)  (131,599) - (#5219
HE-HEMBRE  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries - (154851) (24,495) (134) (2,961) - (182,441)
ik Depreciation — (491,097 (2200512 (16031) (244,584 - 295,4)
EREE Exchange differences 4,948 253 2 2 - - 7,484
REER At end of the reporting period 120231 7945400 13,217,543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991

226 EEMEZERERAA

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

EEYE
BERZE  Electrical
KASELH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HRIR
Freehold g and and Miscellaneous Construction it
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment  in progress Total
ABBTL AREFT  ARETR  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR  AREFZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fiia)  (Hitb)
(Note a) (Note b)
REENE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
8220205128318 year ended 31 December 2020
LEE
REA Atbeginning of the year 231 7945402 13217583 4,508 1202198 486109 23,013,991
AE Additions - 1112 164,568 9,921 613,632 1347937 2,147,170
HEEE Wi Impairment loss (Aot ¢/ - - (66,191) — - - (66,191)
ERkER Transfer upon completion — 163236 1,027,040 4020 174434 (1369,630) -
e Disposals - (24,562) (80,404) (2,548) (71,620) - (179,134)
HE-HEMBRAZ  Disposals - disposal of
(Wiz41) subsidiaries (Note 41) - (43,578) (18,537) (11,477) (68,756) - (142,348)
ik Depreciation - (498,043)  (1,787,674) (11,803) (538,290) —  (2835810)
EREE Exchange differences (2,028) (1,005) (53) 21) - - (3,107)
REER At end of the reporting period 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29,600 1,311,598 464,416 21,934,571
R2020%51518 At 1 January 2020
RE Cost 21,31 12363247 32,108,916 208924 492739 486,109 50,215,822
ZEMERMFERE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses — (4417845 (18,891373) (167,416)  (3,725,197) - (27,201,831)
REFE Net carrying amount MBI 7945402 13217583 M508 1202198 486100 23,013,991
R2020%127318 At 31 December 2020
RE Cost 119203 12,381,380 32,537,228 169,961 5,021,638 464,416 50,693,826
ZAEMBERE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4,828818) (20,080,036) (140,361) (3,710,040 —  (28,759,255)
REFE Net carrying amount 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1311598 464416 21,934,571
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GEE

TR B AN A S
i o

REER  AEEETHRENEE
BEREFANTIERBEEERT
THABRET A AES  REFE
#2 %8 A A R % 40,915,000 70(2079
F AR #47659000T ) EF
RE - NEBEZEEBUARERE
L EEY) o

FRAEBRELRTEARRSR
EBEREEE(LTE - AEEE
BEEENEZBE D ILERKAE
MBERGEERA - Bt - AR
RIEEBEMET B - £ERE
AEEE FEERKERED
BRE© 8 B AR ¥66,191,000 T
(20194 : AR ® 152,050,000 7T)
BE2IREE - AEBEAETEEN
ERELHEREE TEEEE
BTFUEE - BEEMBENERE
HEFBTEK -
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group's certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB40,915,000 (2019: RMB47,659,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation
plan for both the instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset-light
through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to improve
operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. Accordingly,
certain individual machinery and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB66,191,000 (2019: RMB152,050,000) were fully impaired
due to prolonged period of being idle and technical obsolescence
with comparably low production efficiency. The Group decided not
to re-use these machinery and equipment and all those assets are
prepared to be disposed of. The residual values of these machinery
and equipment were estimated to be insignificant.
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EREEE Right-of-use assets
BEAURSE
HELih>
T fERE
Land use HEER
right in HiR &
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other Fok]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ANRBFT ARMTT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REESHE - Reconciliation of carrying amount —

EZE2019%F 12831  year ended 31 December 2019

AIEFE
REY)—RMEBHFTE At beginning of the year -

WELERIE 165 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 3,657,657 535,161 6,905 4,199,723
NE Additions 42,386 214,368 6,865 263,619
MEEL] Lease modification — (56,623) (185) (56,808)
HE Disposals (17,126) — — (17,126)
HE-HEMNMBEAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (65,143) — — (65,143)
nE Depreciation (105,272) (190,507) (3,362) (299,141)
REEER At the end of the reporting period 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
AREEYER- Reconciliation of carrying

EZ2020F12A31 amount-year ended

HLEFE 31 December 2020
REY] At beginning of the year 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
NE Additions 87,961 178,709 5,780 272,450
MEEET Lease modification — (24,866) (1,147) (26,013)
& Disposals (5,957) — — (5,957)
HE-HEMBAR Disposals - disposal of

(Hizt41) subsidiaries (Note 41) (32,851) (121,605) (873) (155,329)
nE Depreciation (100,704) (200,440) (4,675) (305,819)
REER At the end of

the reporting period 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
M2020%1A1H At 1 January 2020
BN Cost 4,280,469 686,625 13,562 4,980,656
Z2EE Accumulated depreciation (767,967) (184,226) (3,339) (955,532)
IRENFE Net carrying amount 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
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EREEE(£) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BERF
HETH2
i fE A
Land use 5
right in Hisk 4
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other wE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT AREFT ARETT AERETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20205128318 At 31 December 2020

DN Cost 4,327,388 614,400 16,162 4,957,950
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (866,437) (280,203) (6,854)  (1,153,494)
HRIEFE Net carrying amount 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
rEBRRFEEMMEES T The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
F oMK EAMERE o BN T 1A equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
HZE304F - month to 30 years.
BE 6 = B2 Restrictions or covenants
Brtiu{E AN REHOHE - B Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
JFELBEANE TRFEREEE PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
ErARAERFER  MAERTE is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
HERERBEBEEE by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.
MWEHENS  ~5EBEBEH For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
MERBEZTTAN  WRABEE properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
BB R E AR RAR AR - their original condition at the end of the lease.
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Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

HEESE Lease liabilities
2020 2019
ARETT AEEFr
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEERE Lease liabilities

mENER D Current portion 101,191 199,664
EREN B Non-current portion 215,609 287,892
316,800 487,556
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HEEEE)
RERAEECHERIA TR

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2020 2019
ARETFT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
MEHE Short-term leases 128,507 185,607
KEBEE Low-value assets 1,369 3,063
P8R 2 F Expenses recognised in profit or loss 129,876 188,670
WIEAR T B FIE Z A] %  Variable lease payments that do
HERNFKHEREBEAN) not depend on an index or
MHEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 37,237 31,783
MERRER 2 B Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 167,113 220,453
mEEELE RS MHARRE Total cash outflow for leases 365,853 426,331

HEARE

B2020F 12 A31H » AEBE B &
EoAMB s BRAKSERIAE
XCHEGN - AT AERR
MNEHEBER ZHEBEEENR A
A R #38,102,0007L(20194F : A
E#8011,0007T) °

MN2020612 A31H  REBED &
= A K #30,949,000 T(2019 4 -
AFCH#42.448,000T) 7 FEHRFEE o
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Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB38,102,000 (2019: RMB8,011,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group was committed to
RMB30,949,000 for short-term leases (2019: RMB42,448,000).
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KERFF A #
B EE Water
Concession resource et
right license Total
AREFT AREFr AREFr
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEYE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-HZ2019%12H31H - Year ended 31 December 2019
LEE
REA At beginning of the year 167,082 19,376 186,458
NE Additions — 158 158
g Amortisation (5,201) (1,205) (6,406)
b 5 SR Exchange realignment 3,199 — 3,199
REER At end of the reporting period 165,080 18,329 183,409
IREEH IR Reconciliation of carrying amount
-EZ2020512H31H - Year ended 31 December 2020
LHFE
REY] At beginning of the year 165,080 18,329 183,409
NE Additions — 1,118 1,118
i Amortisation (5,194) (1,209) (6,403)
b 5 3R Exchange realignment (12,456) — (12,456)
REEH At end of the reporting period 147,430 18,238 165,668
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KB R
BRTRE R Water
Concession resource st
right license Total
AR¥TFT ARHTFRT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M20206181H At 1 January 2020
DN Cost 206,030 24,025 230,055
R EEH Accumulated amortisation (40,950) (5,696) (46,646)
165,080 18,329 183,409
7202012 H31H At 31 December 2020
BN Cost 191,561 25,143 216,704
RET#E Accumulated amortisation (44,131) (6,905) (51,036)
147,430 18,238 165,668
PR EREIEN2012F3 %K Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
B OFRFFTE & 2 AT IS & 7 o FFar result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
KSR TFAREB AR E £ The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
B DHERNETSERERDRE bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
EEERBER  UERERDPEKX soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
e B 5 E R A m W ER R B - It P AR under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
BRENIRAZLI9FEH - HER the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
SEETIREEE - 39 years.
IKERFAF=EERHIERAR Water resource license represents a right to extract mineral water
HESHNEROERIKOERN  Z for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which is
REFTE 20 F NIA B LROREESY o amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.
EEEERBERAEXGE T E R Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
BEEEEIREETRERR - for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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2020 2019
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR & AR (A Cost and carrying amount
M2019F 12 A31HK At 31 December 2019 and
2020%12 A31H 31 December 2020 97,910 97,910

BEEEANREE  REEBNHH
REERLBRATHEALZE K
KmisERMEEBEENOER S
BOMEBOUNES - ELNETHER
BoRER BSEMTTEAH
MEVEENERZRE - Bt AAH
EBEA A EMAER -

BEREEREBEXGHEENEKER
SERTELEM(REELE
2 DETRER

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2020 2019

AR¥FT ARBTFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

Rm Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEREKEEANTER((RRES
EEEMDIER 2017 EWERMNE
ALK AR ARTHMINE S
% ])25% R - 722020412 A 31
B AEEZ2EMMNESATLHIE
eRE EAFERHESELS
MU El S5 - FFTERAENRE
ZEHAEANTFHUBEENRS
METER - BBSFNRESREEL
LA2% (2019 4F : 2% ) RHIIE R =X
HEHR  EEEREILSERIEH
RTTEERTEAN - W EBBRMABET
ENFHRIPEER -

KmReELBEMREEMAEE
SR o e BEEeEREE
S RER HORE -

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") in 2017. At
31 December 2020, the Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2079: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.
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Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2020 2019
RS Gross profit margin 37% 39%
I ER Average growth rate 8% 8%
REIE R R Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
R = Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBEARANEETISE
ERONBEMETREENR - fIEM
MHTIR KB TAT - IR BR B AR 3R
TELBMARNEERR

B B AROR I S A B AT
BeBEZ BRI ARAEEEL
TR 10T e B B 2
EHRED -

MN2020F 12 A31TH T EHE R T
ZHBIWRR A T HRERM 47 -

BEEAMBRRNRAFERALE
HARBEES -

EPN:E- R

R2017F  ARFIEZEMB A
AIEABE AR ERBR AR (FITEA
BEHBEEEERARATER
BE|)EEP—ZHINE E ] 4
BRE(TESFDITVEEHBHE(ESR
Wl MEFWBRMNE B4
25% R o LA - B NE B IR
ERHEEE((RES)  REZ
BiEE BRREBNREERES
(s E ) ER T B AATA
IR ATA RSt EEE A B AIE
B H _El 25% T B 2 AT £L AR AE Y

— YN A RREHKR B
2 8 b 5T 1A B BT 2B P B IR 0 R
B RE TR TNER 2021 FEKAT
R °

236 EEMEZERERAF
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are shown in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

In 2017, Master Kong PBB Investment Limited (formerly known
as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.) (“MKPI”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA") with one of the shareholders (the
“Vendor”) of HZPS to acquire 25% equity interest in HZPS from
the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also issued an authorisation
letter (the "Authorisation Letter”) to MKPI under which MKPI
shall be entitled irrevocably to all the rights and benefits of the
aforesaid 25% equity interest in HZPS currently held by the
Vendor for a period up to the completion date of the registration
of the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the end of the
reporting period, the management estimated that the registration
of the Equity Transfer with the relevant government authority will
be completed not later than the end of 2021.
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BEARENHEBIEMMNESFA
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BEERS/AREHMNIMNE B4
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Significant judgements and assumptions (Continued)

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary
of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

RIEIKHAT 2 £ %8 - eliminations.
#2020 MR2019%
128318 12A318
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
DERET R 2 AL B Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DERER IR 2 W ERELL  Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 33%
#2020 MR20194
12A31H 12A318
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
mBEE Current assets 14,196,877 12,260,392
FEREEE Non-current assets 17,988,008 17,824,052
nEEE Current liabilities (15,598,717) (14,719,312)
IEmBEE Non-current liabilities (1,385,685) (1,086,150)
FHEE Net assets 15,200,483 14,278,982
DI R AR Carrying amount of NC| 3,578,274 3,351,070
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BEANEADHBERER ZHBE QAN

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BEER (&) material non-controlling interest (“NCI") (Continued)
HZE20205F HZ=20194F
128318 12H831H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETTT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 37,279,923 35,599,621
R A Profit for the year 2,105,463 1,339,022
Etamas(EiE) Other comprehensive income (loss) 140,876 (26,900)
FEWEERE Total comprehensive income 2,246,339 1,312,122
D ER R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 511,420 393,083
DB RS Total comprehensive income
PHEW LTS attributable to NCI 542,544 385,795
B HRREERR S Dividends paid to NCI (297,235) (115,918)
s (F)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
K ED) Operating activities 5,104,607 5,258,978
HEED Investing activities (1,792,237) (1,086,765)
BEEE Financing activities (882,456) (2,546,361)
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FEEREZHBARRRREZEIES
]

202065 R &E BH @ — &
BUE=FAUREREARE
20,509,000 T FE R B FH A 448K
BAERAR(TRERER 4 ])EN
B9.35% M EREZ  EAEER
RAEBEALNER#EH68.56%
EMNET7.91% - RIKER - XFH
EARIBNNERE=BRAE
B ANR#17,423,0007C ° Atk D
HRREER T AARKE 17,423,000
T MAPHRREENRmERD
cREYNNReRELHNERE
B ANERH 3,086,000 LE i ALRA
BARREROEZEAN DR R E =S
REFEHEIF - REA - RERED
EX SN

Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

In May 2020, the Group acquired additional 9.35% of effective
equity interest of Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited
("TJBL") from an independent third party at a cash consideration
of RMB20,509,000, resulting in an increase in the Group's
effective equity interests in TJBL from 68.56% to 77.91%. On the
acquisition date, the total carrying amount of the 9.35% effective
equity interest in TJBL was amounted to RMB17,423,000. As at
the result, the NCI was decreased by RMB17,423,000 and the
difference of RMB3,086,000 between the amount by which the
carrying amount of NCI have decreased and the consideration
paid were recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interests
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The cash consideration was fully settled during the year.

2020 2019

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

IE LT - A ARE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEIL BB R A Share of post-acquisition results 90,572 73,028
B U BB & B B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (66,448) (4,169)
94,802 139,537

EEEER 239

2020 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4

YNGR U

jarty
in
jun
fuas]

o

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

TEEE/

it B

Principal AE@EBEZ

place of EREEEESILA

business AR Proportion of effective
LN and place of Registered  ownership interest held ~ FE£%
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities

2020 2019

ARAENESHERLF i US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  FERHERM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of

beverages

A BB = A B TR s R DI BRI AR
BEMBHRES

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

ERFERBE DT 2 HBER

TRINRAKEIZER AR Z
RISEEABE R AW A FTREE M

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
share of results of an associate that is not individually material and

REEEIGES -

accounted for using the equity method.

R2020F 20194
12H31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EE Carrying amount of interests 94,802 139,537
BZ2020%F EHZE20194F
12HA31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFEL Group's share of:
REEH A Profit for the year 17,544 11,812
HAth 2 E W ER Other comprehensive income — —
EHENEEE Total comprehensive income 17,544 11,812
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2020 2019
AREFTT ABWEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEEMMRS » REAE Unlisted shares, at cost 452,832 452,832
JEIE BB R R Share of post-acquisition results 819,026 706,134
B g 1& 1) B WA A Dividend received since acquisition (644,827) (269,901)
627,031 889,065
REEHESE N R 2T - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TEEE/
it S
Principal
place of AREREL
operation/ BEREREERLA
Place R A Proportion of effective
RENRERE of Registered  ownership interestheld FE¥%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
RRKLARERAT i US$11,000,000 31.82%  31.82%  MIRHERXESD
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FE (BM) RmBRAF hE US$24,000,000 60% 60%  MIRHEREER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of meat
products
LTEAEIERHBRAA i US$28,120,000 38.96% | 3896% FUERHERS
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
BRASILHRARAR ( [EEAE] ) i RMB150,000,000 6233% = 62.33%  BEREERM
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS") PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
REAREERAR i RMB400,000 25% 5%  Reh BUERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
N EFRBEE SRR RERES R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
TEEEBHRES method in the consolidated financial statements.
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BEANHERBES Significant judgements and assumptions

REBFZ R —HME2ENBAREA The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
BRE(#M)RmARAGF60%HR Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
ZRE R BIEZEEWBERA contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
HE-—REECANEGRBE ¥ and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
WIKELQHRBEERTENHEBAER affect the investee’s return require the unanimous consent of all
BEMAEKREE —SURE - At investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
AREBREHZEETERIT & but joint control over this entity.

1B A FL RS -

AEBAEB—HEEFEAEEDA S The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
B0%MAER VI EHMEBENBE R through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
AMEEEE B E62.33% 2 BB equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
BHEWEZ - R BB EH agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
BB AR EHEMEEE ZHEMNE investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
FEths HHRELONFREEATEDN the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
HEREEESERD A S Lan of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
ERAFESGHBL0% MIEERE out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
KR—B - BIESDEF  KNEHFH has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
EBAEBAENSBEENHER (T4 as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
ZEZ BASMEEFEASE 2K economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
BEKERANY B RS EREK non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.

RHABEZIEZEREWE R M
HibREERSE —BORE » AR
SERAEREHOSEYEHAE
BB A KRR HIHE -
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ERIZFERSE QR ZHMBER

TRIVURA S EIZ# ak 2 85 3F
BEARGERAMNAERAERAS

ESEES

Financial information of individually immaterial joint

ventures

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

material and accounted for using the equity method.

120205 72019
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EmARAE(E Carrying amount of interests 627,031 889,065
HZE2020%F EHZE20194F
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETFT ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFEM Group's share of:
AN & g A Profit for the year 112,892 222,347
HAth 2 H W E Other comprehensive income — —
PHEU TSR Total comprehensive income 112,892 222,347
EERB AEEREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
GENFE] e material to the Group.
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2020 2019
it ARETT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REES — Investment funds (a) 1,329,281 1,134,392
— FTRAES — Equity securities, listed (b) 198 282
—ELETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (0 — 18,867
1,329,479 1,153,541

EEFvod Designated FVOCI

—EETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (d) 140,444 115,614
1,469,923 1,269,155

Y orza Note:

BREESRNEE(2019F - N 1E)
Ee2RE DR —HKRZIREH
SEMNARAEFABLEE  —RK
TR ERER LS (HE R LR
SDMAEREFTAREE =K
SR E A D AR E E R A
Ko PRI 53 3 B SZ 7 2 78 I 38 A3 A
BOBREERF - UARERAR
SEREESURIAEERMER
B - RNEER REEZSHNAR
EROMAHAESKLERETERA
{8 -

ERAESFNAABERERES
BHRZNTIHRETEE
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The investment funds represent investments in seven (2079. six)
funds which were set up as a limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, a company with liability limited by shares incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), three companies with liability
limited by shares incorporated in the PRC and two companies
with liability limited by shares incorporated in the Hong Kong and
Singapore respectively, aiming at allocating idle funds reasonably
and increasing return on asset. The fair value of the investment
funds were valued by the respective investment managers or trust
administrators at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.
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MisE : (& Note: (Continued)
© REFRN AEEREREARE () During the year, the Group disposed of these unlisted equity

65,934,000 (M AEENEHER
HMARE)HEIELTRAES -
LMW AFHFZ AREETIES
EZHRERAFEF 2 EEFERET -

AREE AR K S T IE LR
RFEHRERE REEFVOCH
BZERAFLFEAEERESRE
BERBEEMNIRE - ELTRA
RENAARBEFTZHASEMNKRE
KIBTEREHARGE 2ABEE
) A R # 32,456,000 70(2019 F -
ARH#3,199,000 L) B AREE
HEREBECTITED) - FEHRER
ERANEENBEFERERBA

securities at an aggregate consideration of RMB65,934,000 which
approximate their fair values at the date of disposal. The fair value
of unlisted equity securities is determined with reference to the net
assets value of the underlying equity securities.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments in unlisted
equity securities as Designated FVOCI because the Group intends
to hold these equity securities for long term for strategic purposes.
The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly
valued by the respective investment managers at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB32,456,000 (2079:
RMB3,199,000) were credited to investment revaluation reserve
(non-recycling). The valuation techniques and significant inputs used
in the measurement of the fair values of the investment funds are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEHRERE M IERAM T 44

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

TREEDATINEEINE

2020 2019
ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

ESI us$ 698,621 541,312
AR RMB 771,104 727,561
il Others 198 282
1,469,923 1,269,155

EAEER 245
2020 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R Raw materials 1,163,642 1,077,257
S Work in progress 80,018 82,355
2K Finished goods 2,104,016 2,285,463
3,347,676 3,445,075
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FELBR 5K Trade receivables
- = — From third parties 1,551,301 1,538,163
—ARRNFZEBRFEZES -~ From companies controlled by
pa A VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 32,683 40,230
—ARRBIEFH — From companies controlled by
K EERK B IR 2 the family members and relatives
oA VNG of the Company'’s directors 2,005 1,684
N — From an associate 1,300 2,178
/N — From joint ventures 73,100 87,270
1,660,389 1,669,525
REBZHEKRIS M ABLEREE The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
BRTHIHE 2 EEHFEFER/3I0E90 remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
X o 30 to 90 days.
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ERAEWER(FIB EBEBE) NG The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
EHIEREHEEE VER DT based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as
RIAR follows:
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90K 0 - 90 days 1,579,741 1,568,425
90 KM+ Over 90 days 80,648 101,100
1,660,389 1,669,525

BRASERIRREERRNE
HER iR A MR 43 -

JEW IR EEAARKTIE -

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade

receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

2020 2019
btaE AR#FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
A E K Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 55,497 124,283
TEfS R AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 18 22,008
TEFIB{E R Prepaid value-added taxes 254,483 773,728
A& ERSY Prepaid operating expenses 941,008 1,058,752
FEUE K Loan receivables 25(a) 225,000 280,000
FE & 2R K Other receivables from sales of
equipment 25(b) — 149,842
JFE LU B, Interest receivables 25(c) 213,038 102,087
Eiikny Deposits 108,242 114,490
FEH&HjETﬁﬁgﬁﬁ Other receivables from disposal
SEETRAFH N of investment funds and
unlisted equity securities 96,394 —
Hith Others 347,218 227,279
2,240,898 2,852,469
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25(a) FEE R

EWERTEREEZHMER
AERTEATEMBHEER
REAFHEIEEERR 2K
5o HERWERAERT
AR —FRNEEERNFEAR
3.85% £5.00% (20719 4 :
505%F6.15%)HEK °

ARAEEAHUFIETHR
HERRT _EAREZHEEK
O EFEEREEEBZRRN
EREBREREERRS -

25(b) EYHERBERK

B it R A TR 2 0 28
BEORLERH - LFSH
REER - FEFBRANE
KESEIE -

25(c) YRS

R A BB RETEMERR
RITHEER o
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25(a) Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent the advances made by
subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their
operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and
bear interest ranging from 3.85% to 5.00% (2019: from
5.05% to 6.15%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Other receivables from sales of equipment

Other receivables from sales of equipment arose from the
sales of machineries and equipment and were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

25(c) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2020 2019
AR¥TFT AEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHTEER Long-term time deposits 2,435,000 725,000
RITHEBR KRR ® Bank balances and cash 21,393,321 17,397,557
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 37,832 32,830
RITERREEEE Total cash at bank and on hand 23,866,153 18,155,387
REATFHFEZER A3F - WikIEE The long-term time deposits are made for periods of three years
AEBAER A R BREF S - F 8K and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest rate
53.45% E4.18% 2 (20194 : ranging from 3.45% to 4.18% (2019: 3.70% to 4.10%) per
3.70% £4.10% Zf#) ° annum.
BHETFERE PEIE - (EAREE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
REB—RBITLEFE(BIER trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
TEAREZ)MIRTTREZERSD - bills, granted to the Group by banks.
MBEREXREBENME ' $(RITERK A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
KB HRESEBYZHIRNOT ¢ equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:
2020 2019
ARB¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFER MR e Cash at bank and on hand 23,866,153 18,155,387
B REFEEER Less: long-term time deposits (2,435,000) (725,000)
BeMREFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,431,153 17,430,387
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RITHERKEIBEAFTUATYEET Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following
8 currencies:
2020 2019
ARB¥FT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 23,386,552 17,818,874
ETT uss$ 439,022 293,974
BT EUR 138 761
ek NTD 21,867 25,309
HAb Others 18,574 16,469
23,866,153 18,155,387
FEAASEZINVERREREER Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
ERGRA SRR 43 5 - discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
2020 2019
BER RER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

RHEE FEL  AREFR kL FET  ARETT
No. of shares Usso0 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 AMB 000

R Authorised:
B0.005F Tz E@EE  Ordinary shares of US§0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
RE At the beginning of the year 5,623,786,360 28120 235,401 | 5,617,968,360 28,091 235,204
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme

EXipd G 600,000 3 2 5,818,000 29 197
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,624,386,360 28123 235422 | 5,623,786,360 28,120 235,401
RZAER + 600,000 FEREAEESTEE A During the year, 600,000 options were exercised to subscribe
RIBZN A 600,000 F @A) - 48 for 600,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
RERAR4,389,0007T * HF A of RMB4,389,000, of which RMB21,000 was credited to issued
R¥21,000 Lt AR BITHRA - M capital and the balance of RMB4,368,000 was credited to the
Eeh AR 4,368,000 7T EH ARR D 55 share premium account. In addition, RMB1,323,000 has been
iR - 35 AR 1,323,000 0 transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
BRERBEBEZROHEER - % premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
ERENEFTEERAEROZEA shares in all respects.

4
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2020 2019

ARHTFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REH] At beginning of the year 724,384 664,400
RIEBER AT 813577 Z %) Shares issued under share option scheme 5,691 59,984
REEER At the end of the reporting period 730,075 724,384

REMEERRIRL - ERF Ak
BREIRNDE  THfURREHE
R ET  ERTRODEMEH
REhaENEREREERR -

e {5 % (BB 2 R R R B B BY S
RAVEZ B -

ENEGRARERREZBRT &
RAZBEER DK TRE
HEARRBRDIREBIDAENEER
ERBEBPEREAN 2 ER

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BOH REAER
R e
RofEE (RaTEE)
&in Transactions SME vestment  MIEE(
BORE  EWERE  withnon-  BERE  revaluation BEE BIRERE
Capital  Remeasur-  controling  Exchange reserve Poperty  —MEE  Sharebased  (REEF
redemption ement interests  translation (Non- revaluation General payment Retained ]
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ANREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT AREFr ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R201951518 At 1 January 2019 400 (37473) (969,897) (520,362) (8.204) 9,869 4,302,363 422,39 15,554,781 18,753,872
FERRT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 3,330,981 3330981
Hfb2E (R k& Other comprehensive (loss) income
AEBHMEMZERE  Remeasurement of defined benefits
obligations — (65,490) - — — — - — — (65,490)
BENOCIAREEZEE Fair value changes in Designated FVOCI - - - - 319 - - - - 3199
EREE Exchange difference on consolidation - - (132,950) - - - - - (132,950)
Bt2E(FE)USEE  Total other comprehensive
(loss) income - (65,490) - (132,950) 319 - - — — (195,241)
REERE(HE)UHLE  Total comprehensive (loss)
income for the year - (65,490) - (132,950) 3199 - - - 3,330,981 3,135,740
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of the
Company:
REEAT Contributions and dlstribution
BREERATNZIE  Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
IRIEERIE BIBTZRA  Shares issued under share
option scheme — — - — — — - (14,080) — (14,080)
ERERK Shares option [apsed - - - - - - (40,574) 40,574 -
BRERREE 2018 final and special dividend
WIBERERS approved and paid - - - - - - - (2463321)  (2463321)
ERARRET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 359,976 - (359,976) -
- - - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2,782,723) (2,452,897)
BEEZZY Changes in ownershyp interests
BRI Changes in ownership interests
HEATEERERY in subsidiaries without change
in control — (817,926) — — — - — — (817,926)
ARDNRARFEZRAEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - (817,926) - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2,782,723) (3,270,823)
R019E12ANA At 31 December 2019 400 (102,963) (1,787,823) (653312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789
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BHY REEfR
REER EfRfE
RSk (RuEm)
Rt Transactions SN Investment  MEEf BRERE
BOfE EfEERE  withnon-  BERE  revaluation ERE Share-
Capital  Remeasur- controlling  Exchange reserve  Property  —MRftfE based  REEA
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation General payment Retained Eit
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AREFL  ARETZ  AREFT  ARETZ  AREFL  ARETL AREFL ARETR AREFr ARETR
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
R202051518 At 1 January 2020 400 (102,963) (1,787,823 (653,312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789
FERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 4,062,263 4,062,263
E2EhE Other comprehensive income
RERHEMLZERE  Remeasurement of defined benefits
W) obligations (Note 39) - 815 - - - - - - 815
RENOUAABEZEY  Fairvalue changes in Designated
(st 22() FVOCI tote 22(c) - - - - 32,456 - - - 32,456
EXEE Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - 752,306 - - - - 752,306
Ep2EkEEE Total other comprehensive
income - 815 - 752,306 32,456 - - - - 185,511
FEERENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 815 - 752,306 32,456 - - 4,062,263 4,847,840
HANARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and distribution
FEERGTAZIE  Equiy settled share-based
(Wit30) transactions (Aote 30) - - - - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
IRIEBRIE BITZRG  Shares issued under share
(Wi27) option scheme (Aote 27) - - - - - - - (1303) - (1303)
BRELN Shares option lapsed - - - - - - (75,556) 75,556 -
BRERTEE2019KE 2019 final dividend approved
) and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - (3,330,981) (3,330,981)
Transfer to retained profits — (3,904) - — — - - — 3,904 -
EREREER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 276,431 - (276,431) -
- (3,904) - - - - 276,437 (60,891)  (3,527,958)  (3,316,316)
BEEZRE Changes in onnership iterests
BEUEEHEY Changes in ownership interests
HEARERREE in subsidiaies without change
(Hit19) in control (Note 19) - - (3,086) - - - - - (3,086)
ARDRAREZRSEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company - (3,904) (3,086) - - 276,431 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,319,402)
R2020%E12831R At 31 December 2020 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 21451 9,869 4,938,776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,221

Hib=mE(EBE) K SAKEE T

% o
=

v

20194 K 2020F 98 BT 5

s/

%

No income tax effect arose from each component of other

comprehensive (loss) income in 2019 and 2020.
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Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC in accordance
with the accounting policies adopted for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note 3(d) and 3(r)
to the consolidated financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(a)

2008 FEERBESTE

BB OfE BT R A A
([20085t &l 1) 2 REEE
MR2008F3 208 BB - %
2008Ft &Iz BM e B2 A
(FFARLA T ) I W SR At FI B % 7R
SEELM AR © 220085
2/ R 2019F3 198 B HA &
Fleg 2 BERRE R 1T AR Al
171 -

EZURAZERTUATA
TR -

(i) ARBHEEFANERA]
WA EBSRBES
TBRAESERESR :

(i) ADRHEERME R
AIMEMESR(EREIFEHR
TEERBIFATE
)R

(i) ARBHEEANE R
I ERER - FAE - H#
JER - BERMAIE -
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).
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(@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2019 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2019: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders” approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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(a) 2008 FHBMRETE (&)

20085t &I A EXR T AR
ANENBARIZEERES
2 B IR ETE LR 2020F &
2019 12 A31HEERZ X

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

TR AT - as follows:
¥
BREHE
Number of  RITENEREZHE
®TFEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period
2020 2019 HK$
200843 H20H 11,760,000 — — 9.28 20134 3AH21H=ZE
20 March 2008 201843 H20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
200944 H22H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H238=%
22 April 2009 2019 4 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
2010F4 A 18 15,044,000 — | 8,637,000 18.57 2015F4H1HE
1 April 2010 202043 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
2011447128 17,702,000 = 9,780,000 10,292,000 19.96 2016F4H12H=
12 April 2011 20214 H11H8
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
201294 H26H 9,700,000 = 6,296,000 6,666,000 2054 2017 4H268%
26 April 2012 202254 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
2013 5H27H 11,492,000 7,766,000 8,190,000 20.16 20185 H27HE
27 May 2013 20234 5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014944178 12,718,500 8,961,000 9,455,000 2238 20199 4R17H=%
17 April 2014 202454 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 H5H 17,054,000 13,534,000 14,692,000 16.22 2020F6 H5HZE
5 June 2015 20256 H4 H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 A48 10,148,000 7,672,000 8,392,000 754 2021%F7R48%E
4 July 2016 20267 A3 H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
20179 4H21H8 11,420,000 10,570,000 10,770,000 1020 2022F4H21H=E
21 April 2017 202754 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
AF 143,726,500 64,579,000 77,094,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMIELTE (Z) (a)

752008 3 8179 14 KT 68 2 B R
BRE BT A EE 2

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share

o Option Schemes are as follows:
2020 2019
T S
TEE TEE
Weighted Weighted
average BREZAE average fEMREEHE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
NG At beginning of the year 16.74 77,094 16.45 88,024
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7.54 (600) 9.21 (5,818)
RFRR I Forfeited during the year 9.20 (320) 15.54 (436)
RERNEUY, K3 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 18.68 (11,595) 20.78 (4,676)
R&EER At the end of the reporting
period 16.51 64,579 16.74 77,094

RITER - FRITENBRES M
EFERBA14.748TT(20194F -
122067L) - THREHA EFE
55 B R BB IR R AR 2K 7,564,000
(20194 :13,161,000) °

20209128318 MARTHHE
REMIMET B AN A3.53
F(2019F 4.05F) - WEEER -
AT AT F& A 4 w9 AR BUZ 47,777,000
(20194F : 52,728,000) - 1 # &
B+ AI1T{E & B8 AR 4 A AN F 19 1T
& /19158 (20194 : 19.32
JBEIT) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$14.74
(2019: HK$12.20). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 7,564,000 (2079:
13,161,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.53 years
(2019: 4.05 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 47,777,000 (2019:
52,728,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$19.15 (2019: HK$19.32).
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders” approval.
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(b) 2018 FHBKRETE (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
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The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company's Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

HIERENT - as follows:
BETEREHE
Number of FRITENEREZE
BTFHEH share options Number of share THEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2020 2019 HK$

2018F4H27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 2021F4A30H=

27 April 2018 2028%F4 H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028

20184 H27H 5,626,000 @ 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 2021F4°30H=

27 April 2018 2024F4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024

CEll 8,104,000 6,263,000 6,263,000

Total

EEEER 261
2020 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b) 2018 FEERRAECHEI (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEEYTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
mr Option Scheme are as follows:
2020 2019
RS S
TEE TEE
Weighted Weighted
average BREZAE average fEMREEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REA) At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 8,068
RERNTTE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZI Forfeited during the year — —
REREUE, 3 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 16.18 (1,805)
R&EER At the end of the reporting
period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RF N2 A BB IR R B 1T None of the options are vested and exercised during the
i o year.
R2020F12 8318 M X 1T The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had a
(EREARRE R INAE TR T & 4V B weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.90 years
BA490F(2019F : 5904F ) » (2019: 5.90 years). At the end of the reporting period, none
REEH S BRRERITE - of the options are exercisable.
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2018 EFEIRRESTE| (£2) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BEIRERTFTERAZ AN ETR The fair value of the share options granted is measured at
EETSEFRMAE - LA the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model,
EXAERETEEREBT - taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-
ZEFHE A ERNRE LT based arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently
FRtERAIRE > AaE subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
ZETE AL REEB N THEE - the limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model
HEBEREAAERERACE are as follows:
BT -

BF¥AZ R¥AZ

AREBE KmE

SR/ ®Br 8K/ #Bxn TEER EREBER
Fairvalue Sharepricc &K/ B ZH% BRHRE=E
at grant at grant Exercise  Risk-free ~ BHIKIE FHTES  Expected

=l date date price interest Expected Expected dividend
Grant date HKS$/share ~ HK$/share  HK$/share rate volatility life yield
20184 A 27H 4.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 10F 2.3%
27 April 2018 10 years
201848278 3.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 6F 2.3%
27 April 2018 6 years

TR B A < — 4 MO P
DA R B LR IE
SEL TS NN T LEL
BB R RE B E R b
ox

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
last one year of share option granted. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

cHMAE-EAZEMRE Financial liabilities - contingent

consideration payable

RENER Current portion 9,959 —
FERBE S Non-current portion — 9,674
9,959 9,674

ZEEEWENIMNA ELMELS
MRBRE FBRARGETBR
xMiF19- EASBIREERES
BEP AT EHEPANMNES
AENBEFFNENE—FoEE
e BNKBEREBZANEBERAA
R #9,959,000 TT(20194F : A
9,674,0007C) » TAET RN IR R 85 3 5T
K E % B E R E RSN IR FVPLER I8
MEmMBEZREID (2019F -
TEEE ) o

FR - ABREBZAAEBEEZDE

B A ARK285000 TRt AR
(20194F : Yax AR 188,0007T) °

The amount represents the contingent consideration payable
arose from the acquisition of HZPS as detailed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements which was determined based
on a certain portion of projected net profits of HZPS for specified
period as defined in the SPA. The fair value of the contingent
consideration payable was RMB9,959,000 (2079: RMB9,674,000),
which was expected to be due on after the completion date of
the registration of the Equity Transfer and recorded in the current
portion (2019: non-current portion) of financial liabilities at FVPL.

During the year, loss on change in fair value of the contingent
consideration of RMB285,000 (2079: gain of RMB188,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ARE T
RMB’000 RMB’000

RITE Bank loans:
H Secured 157,638 532,528
EIEA Unsecured 10,310,892 11,841,931
10,468,530 12,374,459
IR P R R Unsecured notes 3,228,004 —
13,696,534 12,374,459

264 EEEZERERAF
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

B BB 5 5 B R AR IR B R 2 P
ST 3K E S PR SR 05 1 (22
B A A1 42 B SR BB (B IR )
m -

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:

2020 2019
AR¥ T ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FER Within one year 5,891,412 7,454,381
F2HF In the second year 2,655,588 2,104,687
FEIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BREER2F) 5,065,216 2,509,470
AFMNUE Over five years 84,318 305,921
13,696,534 12,374,459
WHBAERSDEELD Portion classified as current liabilities (5,891,412) (7,454,381)
FEmEhE o Non-current portion 7,805,122 4,920,078

EEEEH AR®1,172,080,000
TL(20194 : A K& #1,880,000,000
T)BE—IGREBRRGE TEEARE
FEREeEEmBEMK LR+ @A
BAHHNBERT  ERBEBE-
BEESET I EHEBEASTFER
EMNEXEE HEBENEEE
BREBAE -

InEF Y FEREE214% (2019
F:371%) -

B RIEEREHR AT -

BROTHEREBERIOHERDLE
KEUREME ME BER
HERFERBEEE 2855
A% A R ¥1,122,200,0007T
A K #559,398,000T & A B
#1,460,861,0007L(2019 : %
Bl B A K #1,122,000,0007T *
A 592 584,000 F A FE B
1,505,130,000T )  EE R RITIE
REE . e mEARITENA
ZEAEEERE XX ERTH R

e

Z= o
=

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,172,080,000 (2079:
RMB1,880,000,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.14% (2079: 3.71%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,122,200,000,
RMB559,398,000 and RMB1,460,861,000 respectively (2079
RMB1,122,000,000, RMB592,584,000 and RMB1,505,130,000
respectively). The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and
certain of the unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross
guarantee arrangements amongst the Group's entities.
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AN A B FR2020F9 A24 R # 1T A
@%@%&U%soo,ooo,ooo%mz,ﬁﬁﬁ
WER(ELTEE] - ETEER
8 B R BR M (8 A 495,032,000 %
(& R4 AR #3,228,004,000

TYHABRERE RE=ZFEF
TFIM(BHEREME)  ETR

% 5202049 A 24El t%ﬁﬁﬂ x
1.625% s B - A B AMN3H24H
R A24BRB¥F LA H2021
F3A24B#EZE202549 A24H87F|
H o

ENEERTIEESRIMBR
NAEI LT - BEMSWME - EXLE
BER2020F 12 A31BEMARES
498,165,000k JT(HEE RN & A K
#3,248,434,00070) - ETLEKRTY
RAEBNEERES  WRAA
FEEEMEEAEBEZEREM
7 - 1R 2 I B B S i -

TRBENETERTHS > — &
RUTGEEERLAKREEINETHA

AR - IMRAEEERR
o CHRMNBESANEZRKE

AEETFTHEEHETELERERN
EORERMERERE TR
RERNEEEELETELRHE 8

BRTEERRENER - X&E
MRESERREEMNE —THFBEHR
TR E B MEMFT43 - REE
A AEBESEEREBEDAE
EmENHE(2019F < fE) °
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On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$495,032,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,228,004,000) and is included in the interest-bearing
borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years, inclusive. The
US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020 at the rate of
1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear on 24 March
and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24 March 2021
and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes as at 31 December
2020, based on the quoted market price, was US$498,165,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,248,434,000). The US$ Notes
are the unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at
least equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2079: None).
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AEBEZBEHE D 2 A ERER
BZAWHIRIMT

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2020 2019
AR FT AR For

RMB’000 RMB’000

& 7E ) & At fixed rates 4,914,044 1,732,811
TFENR R At floating rates 8,782,490 10,641,648
13,696,534 12,374,459

BEBENATIE!TIE :

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2020 2019
AR¥TFT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 1,567,638 2,915,340
ETT us$ 12,128,896 9,459,119
13,696,534 12,374,459

EMEEINERR RA R RO
— I NRA B SRR M 43
it -

RERMKTE

AEBERMETE  BERBER
E2Mo5lmhE BERAES
77 BT A A e S R B o IR
HASEFEARLEFIZESR
FEBZETASLERHERK . K
SER XA LA A HR - A
BEEXNTE FELRAEERET
RIRE R ERZBH o

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.
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REBATE

REBEBNTAMEEEREERERT
BRETE - AEBEEBRIBEMET
EEEWAEMBHEREFNNEE
BRA - BRFERAEERSFH
k6 EANFHIHERER - K
EEHATRANFAINETRZHE
UEEMEREE RN AES DA
([EEBEBEERDFAE B 2B
Bl hRBENEE RN 20204
12 A 31 BUATERT BRI 4 T A A #E
e

AEEMHERER®AMTEAEEZ
BEW R ALRE B FR IR 2 FOR

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2020 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

REREBEZHEIHET : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 157,066 115,436
ARF [F RIS A A Current service cost (7,863) 10,626
F B Interest expense 4,173 2,998
(3,690) 13,624
B4E Remeasurements:
MBREFAEREE L Actuarial (gain) loss arising from changes in
B8 (M=) EE financial assumptions (2,135) 2,679
KHRABRELY Actuarial loss arising from
EEEE experience adjustments 2,502 72,198
367 74,877
B &7 Benefit payment (31,577) (46,871)
REER At end of the reporting period 122,166 157,066
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEEERN T ERK The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2020 2019
% %
PrIR=E Discount rate 3.10 2.80
T8 B S BN -1 Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00

g AETZRERERNA
BEAREEHHRATR/ANE T IHE

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
RERBNEE REBMEME
0} -2(d &L
Change in Change in
EEH:E-X(4 defined  RFEAE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Prif & Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.32%/ +/- 0.5% -2.81%/
+2.46% +2.98%
TE HA S B0 Expected rate of +/-0.5% +1.46%/ +/-0.5% +3.13%/
salary increases -1.38 % -2.98%

FigERELSMERESEABER
EHMAENEEREE - MHEMR
BRFAE - EMI5ERR M AEE
1B F o Rk Tk - B
AR EDWTETA » TBEFERL 4T
RAERRETE R EEMNEENIR
18 % 48 8 10 3 H R 7 AR A A 3B 5 R
i‘%}f«z’i(ﬁuiﬁ_%) o B ERH) AR K

ERBBEILND ARBEANE LAIF
Eﬁ@ﬁﬁf‘ AT o

ATEANETHMEFTHEHRZ
4.90F (20194 : 5,904 ) °

g

RELFHE aEZEEFENE
260 5RBF Z B RKEF] ©

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 4.90 years (2019: 5.90 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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REBNE (&)

ARAERMABRERFAIE
EARETEIMNESTHERT
EHMHZIAHER - B RITRME
NI BB ST

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 35,667 16,102
BB FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 19,294 27,123
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 20,134 52,582
FBIB S5 F Over 5 years 102,816 154,762
177,911 250,569

A R A BIE A (8 R0

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

wmR liabilities are as follows:
Bzt 2020 2019
Note AR¥FT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 784,251 538,420
HEH B QA Disposal of subsidiaries 41 (4,787) 154
B ARREE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
BRI of earnings by subsidiaries (102,185) (220,073)
FFALZAWERRA  Charge to consolidated income statement 11 470,804 465,750
REER At end of the reporting period 1,148,083 784,251
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REER CHIAZETEREEE

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the

FEafEmT reporting period represent the following:
2020 2019
BE afE BE =L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETFT AR¥FT AEETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MEBEITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (603,222) — (594,330)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—(FRAEEE — Right-of-use assets
M - R REE and property,
plant and equipment — (50,861) — (61,268)
—-BVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (40,975)
—REURHE — Investment properties — (21,292) — (21,242)
—¢@MITA — Financial instruments 7,061 — — —
BEEE Impairment losses 82,488 — 77,033 —
REGERZ Un-invoiced accrual
RIZER 236,551 — 226,134 —
HEME - EER Unrealised profit on property,
BEIARERFE plant and equipment 62,606 — 65,295 —
BEARARSEFE  Withholding tax on undistributed
Z TR earnings of subsidiaries — (822,851) — (440,200)
B ER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 10,487 (39,207) 8,875 (33,407)
EEBIEEE(AME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 429,027  (1,577,110) 407,171 (1,191,422)

REFECEMSHRZE  INEKRE
ERUNTFENIIEREDRAE
FHRBARIR10% 80 R U Ta

R’ -

Z R EF2008F 1 A1 H#E

A EAR2007F12A318%
18 2RI S BCADE o 8 BT
EARZ SNBI1% B B T AR B 3R 3 [ R
NFEEEERKGE - AlEARK

BE o

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%

withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign

investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in

the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and

applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A

lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty

between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEEAHK B A R E B X
B5% (2019F 1 10%) - KEE R
BEEERAGBHENRBRFH
YF AT 4 o BE BB T AT IR AR B A IR AT
MIBERE -

HEFH T FME(ATFAED A
TR E L A AR 183,811,000
TL(2019%F : A R #1,728,487,000
L) EEDEREAHMTIE - #
ERRBEFALEZEHRTFHNEEAE
BUESEEQAR v EEES W
AR RTED B - F it I M 1E
FIMEETL A o

REEBRR AEBEEHARK
111,128,000 7C(20194F : A & ¥
111,128,000t ) Fi 7% B EHER Rk
EFHIBBEE - BEEEBEAEERRD
HZEBERELRAARAFHZ
sk - REZER AEREL

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5% (2079:
10%). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
RMB183,811,000 (2079: RMB1,728,487,000) which would
become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the
directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are
required for financing the continuing operations of these entities
and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation have
been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2019: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEE BB EEIBRFHAT as follows:
2020 2019
RBEEIPR AR FT ABWEF T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 — 330,066
2021 275,783 431,724
2022 301,105 321,339
2023 155,343 238,015
2024 313,184 420,219
2025 250,166 —
1,295,581 1,741,363
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
F=5 To third parties 6,733,515 6,258,861
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRRIZESE — A group of companies controlled by
SENZEI =D& I the family members and relatives of
EHIE—4E A A the Company'’s directors 1,399,649 1,402,880
i ElNE] To an associate — 10,527
SRV To joint ventures 13,810 5,767
8,146,974 7,678,035
ERNE=F B@EBAL BaE2Q The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
AIRGEERAIZENERRER and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
- RE KB 30E90KRER - period of 30 to 90 days.
ERNEFRRNEERREZARR 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BRI DTN T the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90H 0 - 90 days 7,243,120 6,789,795
90 B k Over 90 days 903,854 888,240
8,146,974 7,678,035
FESBRFUA TS & TI(E - The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
AR#FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 8,144,649 7,670,078
e us$ 2,141 7,783
Hity Others 184 174
8,146,974 7,678,035

EEER 273
2020 Annual Report ¥



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR S Deposits received in advance 1,943,924 2,649,443
B EEREEER Accruals for transportation,
2 TR promoting and advertising expenses 5,184,310 4,869,538
THEANEEME&EER  Accruals for administrative expenses
it and other operating expenses 684,131 667,631
B TE KRBT B Salaries and welfare payables 1,220,365 1,155,403
RSB Payables for purchase of equipment 170,885 104,831
FERT H AL B IR Other tax payables 281,638 708,616
BAKREEFHE Consideration payable for acquisition
FERTRAE of investment properties — 31,129
FERTAIE Interest payable 21,707 43,383
FEAS DR R AR F Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 39 33,678
Ht Others 572,279 497,798
10,079,278 10,761,450
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2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B4 A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596
FMEER Interest expenses 348,639 413,652
F B WA Interest income (667,617) (541,222)
e Depreciation 3,141,629 3,251,365
WFVPLERIEM SR EZEZ  Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL
PR A (135) (3,253)
B EE ZEH Amortisation of intangible assets 6,403 6,406
HEME - W NEMER  Loss on disposal of property, plant
FRAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 77,332 92,900
Y - R RREREEE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 66,191 152,050
RFVPLEEMSRIB R Change in fair value of financial liabilities
AABEZEEFE at FVPL, net 285 (188)
KREUEEAAEBE Change in fair value of investment properties
o (200) (3,674)
RFVPLEEH M EE Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
NABEZE 40,905 (20,774)
HERZE N F 2 W Gain on disposal of an associate — (131,053)
HEGE AR ZIkaE Gain on disposal of a joint venture — (223,150)
HEWB AR ZUkzs Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (118,069) (628,889)
JE(REEE RBI A E AR Share of results of an associate
E and joint ventures (130,436) (234,159)
EREGE HE Effect on exchange rate changes (80,564) (68,101)
RY AR AEE RGN Recognition of equity-settled
T2 FIE share-based payment 15,988 24,504
GFE 2RO Decrease (Increase) in inventories 97,399 (793,335)
FEUBRFN 2 (3810 ) Bk > (Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (13,442) 45,946
TR B R EMBEUWFIE  Decrease (Increase) in prepayments
2 (38 hn) and other receivables 349,023 (210,977)
JE TR R 2 30 Increase in trade payables 474,046 724,074
Hfppetmm kD W4 (Decrease) Increase in other payables
Z Gl ) 380 and deposits received (225,091) 2,229,634
BRI FRIE 2N Increase in advance payments from customers 551,019 131,153
IFERETEFEMTIREZ Decrease in present value of
RS unfunded employee benefit obligations (35,267) (33,247)
KREEEFBRE Cash generated from operations 10,429,950 9,591,258
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37(a) MEEBELNARHER

FRELARE RS BEED
MBERD  BERS RIS
2D WEFDELNAM
BREREARKRLTE -

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEREBGARESRERT will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
SEAMEETHELENR SR cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2o
ERDE
&L
(Hiet36)
Dividend
HEEE [REARE payable
(Kt 16) (Hiit32) RITEXR to non-
Lease  Unsecured (#f#£32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
RK2020F181H At 1 January 2020 487,556 — 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
FHEEM Net cash flows
(HEL (i), (i) (i) (Notes (1), (i), (i) (198,740) 3,369,999  (1,074,329) (399,145) 1,697,785
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 18,399 1,673 — — 20,072
MRS New leases 160,885 — — — 160,885
HEBIIZFE Fffect on lease modification (26,132) — — — (26,132)
HEMELA Disposal of subsidiaries
(Biit41) (Note 41) (125,168) — — — (125,168)
Rl Dividend declared — — — 365,506 365,506
ERER Exchange realignment — (143,668) (831,600) — (975,268)
20205128318 At 31 December 2020 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
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activities (Continued)

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

D&
[ 5 A
(Hizt 36)
Dividend
MEEE payable
(K1t 16) RITER to non-
Lease (M7t 32) controlling
liabilities Banks loans interests BEt
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2019F181H At 1 January 2019 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367
RMBBVBRE Upon adoption of HKFRS 16
AERIZE 1657 508,591 — — 508,591
FRE M Net cash flows
(B2 0), (i), (iri)) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (205,878) 1,426,712 (115,827) 1,105,007
Bt #5 - Other changes:
BWER BT Amortised interest expenses 24,625 — — 24,625
g New leases 212,480 — — 212,480
HEBII T E Effect on lease modification (52,262) — — (52,262)
B E A Dividend declared — — 123,646 123,646
b5 ER Exchange realignment — 113,239 — 113,239
720195128318 At 31 December 2019 487,556 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693

(i) WITERMFAE

HERBNFREMEE
FAXNEERBEZAS
RFMBED °

A IRTT
REMEREETR B
i R SUF AR B I 3%
TERERREBEFME
BREEMERNRITE

3 T A s =
RHFIRERE °

(i) eSO BBR AL B F

BenEBRFAMNIHK
BERHBLE, -

(ii)

(iii)

The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent
the payment of capital element and interest of lease
liabilities.

The net cash flows from unsecured notes and
bank loans make up the net amount of proceeds
from bank borrowings, repayments of bank and
other borrowings, net movement of other short-
term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes.

The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-
controlling interests represent dividends paid to non-
controlling interests during the year.
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In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
of the Group's business.

BRAGERE MO REIRS
K SREELASL - AT TO AR SR B B RS
ATETZEARSGHE  HERH
TIRASEE 2 BEEBHET -

2020 2019
otz3 AREFT ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
() BEBALZRS (@)  Related party transactions
mrHAREEER Sales of goods to:
RREZEERREH Companies controlled by a substantial
4 VNC] shareholder of the Company () 151,540 174,809
i VNG An associate 36,855 45,939
BER7 Joint ventures 544,303 613,801
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
/NI v A group of companies controlled
%Jﬁtﬁi B REB S by the family members and relatives
Z—HRF of the Company'’s directors (i) 5,350,961 5,236,010
NG An associate 54,981 62,326
ARERH Joint ventures 59,456 63,003
BRIARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEERFES 2 Companies controlled by
ZE AT a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 44,758 41,197
mrHARKBRKER Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BERT Joint ventures 8,536 2,935
B 52 B R R & 1 Rental income from investment
EHERYE  BER properties and property,
BE2HE plant and equipment
ADRZEERRES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
E4EVNE] shareholder of the Company 42,156 44,222
RRAIZESZ A company controlled
FEERK B N IR by the family members and
—ERAA relatives of the Company's directors 3,189 3,089
BT HARXE A HERA Distribution costs paid to:
FRREEYL A group of companies controlled
%JﬁtﬁX ERBBIEH by the family members and
Z—HRA relatives of the Company’s directors (i) 670,322 —
M)  RIEETRBIE 14AE - ZF

Note () These related party transactions also constitute continuing

i
BRAMAT RSN AFERE
R5 e

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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ZEREER2017TFREMMNEEN
BESRSEERGBBY - F15H
B RAME19 - BEABR
TP 2021 FFR &5 -
2020F 12 A31 HRA AE MR
B1E(20194F - AMEREAE) °

HREEAEBZHE

FEEBAREEABZME
(BREGAMBRERMZ10M
BERAARRES  THAESR

LA BTIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees

XMNZFERAET RS E as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
BX[ZHB)WT - statements, is as follows:
2020 2019
AR¥TFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE0S Directors’ fees 4,345 4,348
Fe hHMME Salaries and other emoluments 69,766 83,138
VAR 321~ 2 5RI8 Share-based payments 14,469 22,266
TEAT Discretionary bonuses 23,039 16,048
BAS I RIEEH  Retirement payments and contributions
RIS ETEIHER to pension scheme — 23,902
111,619 149,702

=
R

The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash
consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as
detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements which

LN is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2021 and is

therefore recognised in other current liabilities at 31 December
2020 (2019: other non-current liabilities).
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ERNEEETEVERELEDE 159 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
HNEEANBE(CITBEIERREFRNIE decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
MEBLEENZES))INT : liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during

the year are as follows:

2020 2019
ARMTF T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 1,809,935 1,678,782
R AWA Recognised as revenue (1,809,935) (1,678,782)
WBIR RN EWMMTERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,360,954 1,809,935
REER At end of the reporting period 2,360,954 1,809,935
2020912 A31H K&20194F12 A At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the advance
3MH BREFEMAEEHN —FR payments from customers are expected to be recognised as
HRRBWA - revenue within one year.
FRN - AEBH-BBIE=FR During the year, the Group entered into two sales and purchase
—ZAB A REIN MDD E B i agreements with an independent third party and a connected
2 Bl S W B A R E o AR party for the disposal of the partial and entire equity interests in
BR2EHEE HESEENE two subsidiaries respectively. These disposals were completed
NEK THRIANEMTEHER during the year. Upon the completion of the above two disposals,
HEMB AR FWHETE AR total net gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of RMB108,922,000
108,922,000t E st AEBHIE - K was recognised in profit or loss, and a gain of RMB9,147,000 was
EERRAAEBEBRRI.56%RE resulted from recognition of 1.56% equity interests retained in
F—HEAMB AR 2 R MmERA one former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control
R¥9,147,000 L2 Y25 o REB R is loss from the partial disposal of the subsidiary. The retained
EERRIREESEE AERAR interests were recognised as financial assets at FVPL at the date
FVPLEEMN S REEBD &S H when control is lost and were fully disposed of before the end of
RATZHHE ° the reporting period.

280 EEEZERERAR
TINGY! (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



ATt R B E RN HE R H

r:-
W

S B TE R &R MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

The following summarises the aggregate consideration received

BENBENEREEASE : and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
s
Total
ABREFIT
RMB’000
FMEENFEE(AE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed
M - HERRE Property, plant and equipment 142,348
EREEE Right-of-use assets 155,329
JiE U BR 3R Trade receivables 22,578
BRI E E Deferred tax assets 568
TE S FRIE B B fh e U R TE Prepayments and other receivables 322,337
RITEHR MRS Bank balance and cash 43,949
RETRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (5,355)
HEasE Lease liabilities (125,168)
JiE I BR X Trade payables (5,107)
HiEiIsmE ke e Other payables and deposit received (392,371)
AL Taxation (3,103)
156,005
BB A R M U e BR Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 118,069
REBERZ AAEE Fair value on retained interests (11,313)
262,761
2R E Consideration received
ReRE Cash consideration 220,761
FEURAB SR Consideration receivables 42,000
262,761
HEMBARZESRANFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 220,761
BEREZReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (43,949)
ReERASEENZRANTE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 176,812
HERB QR WE 2 ik: Reconciliation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
REERE R Zm A Gain on retained interests 9,147
HEME A RF W Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 108,922
HEMBARWE(HE8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 118,069
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BEELENED  RRRREHEE

BRAEMBHEIRER % -

AEEFERREFREGIRRE &

R EEWHEEE)R

HmFEa

EREARLR(ER/ARRBIREN
BamitR)AEREEAR(BIEHR
B ) - MEMREBESL

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting

flamT period was as follows:
2020 2019
ARETFT ABBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,696,534 12,374,459
A RERRESEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (21,431,153) (17,430,387)
FHIRE Net cash (7,734,619) (5,055,928)

AR FIRER I R Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 21,112,724 19,578,574
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -36.63% -25.82%

REBEBELEHME

\e o4y
A R

BERTEHREIMERBERERE I
REBEEERANECHBE NG

B ABKRERE

EERAE

B BITHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEEMNX
B RRERHMLERS -

PR2020F « REEME

% 822019

FHER > BERFABEHETIA

A o
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2020, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2019, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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AEERBAENERITARHMS
EBEER  SMNERR - FERER -
EERREABDESAR - KBFE
AEECRER  BEEERART
MEREEHR BEFERTLR
BEERAZAREESRNT

miSERER

AEERMMSZEERBRRES TR
FVPLEEM SR EESEAARE
771,302,000 7T(2019F : A & #
708,976,0007T) - BB E B B
BETRARRETRAKRGNIEEAE
NEIBZRER - 8UKE DT IR
FTEROTSERRRIEL - R4
HA BEERAELIZFVPLEERE
MEMEEREEAZTSERRR

The Group's financial instruments expose it to market price risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on
its risk management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks
to a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from certain
financial assets at FVPL amounted to RMB771,302,000 (2079
RMB708,976,000). The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks
and different return profiles. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to market price risk. At the end
of the reporting period, the management considers these financial
assets at FVPL are without significant market price risk.
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SNERRR

REEBMNRNBARETEZEFHL
g ETEUARBEZSEE - K
SETEEHINER R AR AR A
SEMBAR ZNEEE B LA - A
HEMmEBEXINENEARRE
HE RI&EH BEEE &
FVPLEZ B ) & B0 & B f2 B8 B s A
TER%E -

ARBEITHRMABTHEA
RRTTRM 2 HMNEE B 48 B F 1%
Bl- AREENHBARNETER
BREMPINIEERET  RE
AELLEININERRTESEX
RBESE RERNAREREELET
BERERIEE) AR SMNE R ©

REBER20204F K& 20194 12 A 31
HUASNE(JEAREE ) EHER L FVPL
REMNEMEE BHakBae®
7 BEBEREMNERFED
R E M EHmERMEE22, 26, 32 &
35

REZER - WA EMEERET
g O MAREHELBET  ARK
HEaBERARESBRE TS A
FH1E B 1E21%  0.3%K3.4%
(20194 : 73 B %2.4% - 1.3% K
23%) AEEEEMNRREE
#5328 AR 603,0007T
(20194 : ARK2,357,0007T) °
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Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. During the year, the Group has not entered
into significant hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
2.1%, 0.3% and 3.4% respectively (2019: 2.4%, 1.3% and
2.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB603,000 (2079:RMB2,357,000) higher/lower.
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SNERBR(E)

BRESMBRBINEHBRERNEE
BEREH W EANKTEBAAER
ZAFE s eI EMNEER
® o MATE A EUFRI2FE)
REAE - JIH 2 EHRREERE
IR BMERBARNET—FE
HEBZARREIRZEE - ko4
A 2019 F AR -

FEER

AEBETEZmMENMNXEBRZRE
RITERLBEEREESAEE@ Y
F R E R o F B R IRITAEBR SF
BNEXBAERRBESAKERHRS
mMEMNERER HRESMEE K
SENRBEEREEERELEE
REEEREEMNTREERERE
BE LB o

HR - REBWRETEKREHE
B UEARERERAAEEN
MERR - NEEH AEETEE
E M E 2 &K B36%(20194F -
14%) °

REER - WA B EMEHRET
- UERTRAREIEZRITEHEH
kEBEENESBAH FHIE25
(20194 : 75) % 10(20194 - 30)%:
2 ANFEE BRI RARE 5 ) 1818
o,/ A A R 2,839,000 7T(2019
F B BN B 20,897,000
JT) e

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2019.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 36% (2079:
14%,).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings dominated in US$ and
RMB had been 25 (2079: 75) and 10 (2019: 30) basis point higher/
lower respectively and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit for the year and retained profits would
increase/decrease by RMB2,839,000 (2019: decrease/increase by
RMB20,897,000).
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FEER (E)

BRESTREBEANNERFALIRE
BUWERARAEBERFRNFE 2R
THARBEEENNERRE - A
ELRAREIEZRITEHRRE
BEEDRAAKFAEK25(2019
F:75) % 10(20194F - 30) £ B
REBEBTGMERB|AZET —
FEAHEAZAGELBE 228 1t

DATEAEE 2019 FAEF) o

FERR

AEENEERREZXRAREH
EHER R LBSFEY B
Wit B ok B A B R TR > AR LK
MORMERFRMNRERREF
EMOEFERAEREENER SR
BEXBREENTHEEE  E
HERERRELTFEEANE
ERE - N E MBI KRR
TREERTEGIRERREE)NK
RAEENEERR  HEXREE
PR B EER R EMEEIEE

HEME -

FER R,

REBZHERNTDBEFTKRE -
AEBARRERNEEHEZE
LEEHERINEELEILIFE
HEE - ERFPERZERSHER
B-RIBER - BETEIEERF

fti o
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence during the
year. The 25 (2079: 75) and 10 (2079: 30) basis point increase or
decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings
dominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2019.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group's exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
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FERRE)
FEW RS (&)

AEENEERBRIEXREREP
ERFRNEE FPEENTE
MBI E LR R DS EHERRR

EETE  BRERER/ -

AEENEFPHABRZEPAMNK
FEWERZARRBRE#HSE - K
KEFPBRBEANKERIZNATAE S
FIEME N - AEBHABLTE
STEERFIAEMECL - WIREEER
EHMBETFEPHECLEREER
# WEY TEREELEREBEX
BRI BEER  WIRER AL
BREBFEERETTHAE - A&
B EREEEBOMETAERD
TBHEAERRBREBEBEA=FHER
ERABRERAEN  WREEA
MAEEARETHAE  URBREK
SFEL BB BHANLSERRZ
BHEZR BAKRERAEELHE
Wt BR 3K T8 HA 4 HA 7 R SRAS B AR 0 /O
fhar- BEEERR BERARLK
BRAMNEXREERRRR20205F
20194 12 B 31 B &9 FE Ug BR 7R &Y
BINGSEBELTEKR - FAMGE
Rk EARB W ELE)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 1 January and
31 December 2020 and 2019 to be insignificant. There was no
change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continuea)
FEU RS (2) Trade receivables (Continued)

MR 2020 K% 20194128318 A
BERE @8R RmEREZRANE
ERRERECLHERB T -

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are summarised below.

2020512 H31H As at 31 December 2020

AR E
Gross carrying

FEEXE

amount Credit-impaired

ARETFTT

RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,480,720 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 A Within 30 days 76,515 No
31-90K 31 -90 days 59,673 No
#8368 90 X Over 90 days 43,481 No
1,660,389
72019412 A31H As at 31 December 2019
EREE EEBEXZIE

Gross carrying

amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,447,557 No
2B R R E Past due but not impaired
30 A Within 30 days 85,398 No
31-90k 31 - 90 days 64,885 No
#E38 90 K Over 90 days 71,685 No
1,669,525
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FERRE)
FEW R ()

20204 K& 20194 12H 31HE @
HAB AR MR (B R PR AR SR B e T B R
%l*ﬁﬁﬂ&%&aﬂﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ
o AEBUTRBEZSEBA R
AR EELEEZUESAEE  MES
RAZERBERDEUE -

Eﬁﬁﬂi 31| HA b, 2R 1500 (B O 8 LA 5k 7R B
MORBENCHBNEZEFBR -

202012 A31H - AEB L&
5hE MR RIS B EME M (20719
FAE) -

ERBELT  SER
ALFE
AEERREWRBMENT &%
XMBBEAEALTHIE BEwmtE
FEUGRTE S IEE SR - ERK
SEFMBRED LRCEAY
REm BEHESMEHRR KR
mEERRAE - JEWLJE K IE B
SHAETR 12 AMECLETE - I ok
TRHR RO ﬁézozoiuﬂ
31 REELERHEHNERS
EMEINEEREBEETERN o

A FHE

I

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related
parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2020, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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FERR(E)

7 55 [ 4 B U B A R B A W ERIE
ETRENEEEN 12 HECL.
It S5 R & [F B SR I H b fE R IE HY
EERBRARSGETNEN &
AMASERELERAOER S
T EANGEEEREREBEEL=R

TR -

HEERHECLES - AEEEEBEEE
SEREEBRERMNZ OB
AI - BENESR - BERIEEE -
REMEERRETHE  AEE
BEEAN—REBERR - RHETT
RENTTE  BrIELEREEN
BAOBME  UAREBBBERLTEN
BWEX - REENEREZED
MBRR  EREE - R5EHTM
BENBEELE BRELETRE
EMECLETEKRN - FREMBER

WREABRTRELL -

REER AEEZERKRERTE

RUESZREFANEESETA

73.33% (20194 : 89.29% ) K & Uk
AREFANGEEEFTRRE 100%

(20194 : 100%) °
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 73.33% (2019: 89.29%) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2079: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to

maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed

credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor

current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those

relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the

end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that

the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of

the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments

is summarised below:

1550 E 265 L
15R% BE25R  BESFER
REREH  Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but 5ENL
1 year or within less than Over a5t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20205128318 At 31 December 2020
JEIT R SR Trade payables 8,146,974 — — — 8,146,974
Hi R 5a R Other payables and
[REveia deposits received 8,556,834 — — — 8,556,834
HEAR Lease liabilities 111,945 92,156 110,948 32,184 347,233
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,045,085 2,776,422 5,259,624 122,619 14,203,750
En@afE Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
FENSARE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
22,910,797 2,868,578 5,370,572 154,803 31,304,750
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FEBELER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

1500 E 2

TERsk  BmR2FA EBESEAR

BEREH  Morethan  More than

Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut SEME

1 year or within less than Over Gl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ANEREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

720195128318 At 31 December 2019

TR Trade payables 7,678,035 — — — 7,678,035
HibENHIER Other payables and

Bl E deposits received 8,897,431 — — — 8,897,431
HERE Lease liabilities 219,102 137,580 149,999 27,453 534,134
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,699,649 2,219,797 2,615,706 355,329 12,890,481
HibIEREERE Other non-current liabilities — 40,000 — — 40,000
ERHARE Contingent consideration payable — 9,674 — — 9,674

24,494,217 2,407,051 2,765,705 382,782 30,049,755

ExEeE KL TERAGERE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
IR SRR E SR E & clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
RHIGER  HEEEcBERE LD W loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
SRRAMNRERER ER -BRES In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,172,080,000
EVW A TEEHEEASTFEEENRE (2019: RMB1,880,000,000) as at the end of the financial period
HEREF - AR ®1,172,080,000 have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
TL(2019% : A B #1,880,000,000 that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
JL)REEHE R AR % and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
SEBNKBERMEERERR following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
LU
2020 2019
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 1,180,955 1,911,216
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2020 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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(a) HUAABEIENLREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
2020 2019
HEIN fin q53 & iGN ash #A3 it
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ABBTR ABRTR ARRTL ARRTEZ ARRTT ARETT ABRTT ARRTR
RMBU0O  RMBUO)  RMBUOO)  AMBYOD  RVBOOD  AVBUDD  AMBUR0  AWBUM

BE Assets

RRPEEGZEEE  Fnandal assets at FUPL

-REES - Investment funds 17,104 - 558,177 1,329,281 708,694 - 425698 1134392

- LiREES - Equity securites, listed 198 - - 198 2 - - 8

- LmREES - Equity securitie, unlisted - - - - - 18867 - 18867

EERod Designated FVOC/

-fEnREES - Equity securities, unlited - — 104 14044 - — 56l 11561
302 - 698,621 1,469,923 708,976 18,867 541312 1,269,155

8 Liabilities

FRPEZSZE8E  Fnandal labilties at FUPL

- ERERE - Contingent consideration payable - - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,674 9,674

- - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,674 9,674

R2020F K 2019FE RN » 8 During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there

BEBEBAEABNIERR2ZME were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

%z R BIEBEREERT measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

3 AHRI3ED - value measurements.
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EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

UARAEBHEIENEREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
R2020%F N 2019F N & E HA The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
EAREBETEDEALR3 measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
RFFMEBINT - hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
are shown as follows:
2020 2019
gE af EE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
B FVPLEE EFVPLESR
MemEE  EKEFVOQ MeREE  EEOU
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvocl FVPL FvoCl
¥t FEft LT et
REES RExES AERE RERES hrE% FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable
ARBFE  AREFT  AREFZ  AEETT  ARETT AEETX
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R At beginning of the year 425,698 115,614 (9,674) 447 49 114,018 (9,862)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 428916 — - 20,033 — -
& Disposal (202,779) - - (76,762) (3,578) -
BSIZA(BIE)RNE  Total (losses) or gains
recognised:
-Ri - in profit or loss (38,999) - (285) 26,938 - 188
-Et2ERE ~in other comprehensive
income — 32,456 — — 3,199 —
ERES Exchange difference (54,659) (7,626) - 7,993 1,975 -
REER At the end of
the reporting period 558,177 140,444 (9,959) 425,698 115,614 (9,674)
REEEHAZEER  Changein unrealised
REHARBNES gains or (losses) for
FRANED (BR) the year included in
228 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period 12,423 — (285) 19,864 — 188
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(1)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial assets
at FVPL mainly comprise four investment funds which
are categorised as Level 3 (2079: four Level 3) of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of three (2079 one) of the investment
funds in Level 3 is estimated based on the net
asset value of the investment fund reported to the
investors by the investment manager as at the end of
the reporting period. For the remaining one (2079:
three) investment fund in Level 3, the fair value is
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques including mainly price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach
(2019: average earnings before interest, tax and
amortisation (EBITDA) multiple model and price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds was -10% and average price-to-sales (P/S)
ratios of comparable companies of the corresponding
industries was ranging from 0.99 to 1.17 times (2079:
The expected annual growth rates of unquoted
companies invested by the funds ranging from -9%
to 8%, average EBITDA multiple and average price-
to-sales (P/S) ratios of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries ranging from 5 to 22 times
and ranging from 1.40 to 1.62 times respectively).
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVPL: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities was
determined with reference to the net assets value of
the underlying equity securities.

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates of -10% (2079: 0%) and
comparable companies’ average price-to-sales (P/S)
ratio of 1.17 times (2019: 1.40 times).

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TERTERRASBESET Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
MRI3AABHEHIEEZFTER The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
AERE AMRE ZE8 W for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
™
MEBERAEE
AEE2E
hEgEHE
Impact on fair
120208 value and
1283182 the Group’s
MERE total
Fair value TIRRBANGLHDARENIER comprehensive
at 31 December (BREBRZRETR) income for
w0 ERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AggTr  Valuation  FTEEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB000
BAPLRENEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
pEge 558177 THERE  EHEERE EERMEREMR  AOLEENE RITA: +-5 % +-2,624
Investment funds PIS ratio model  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TEEAT TmEE  ARBRATz TETEE  ERN0AEE: 4 50% +23,849
Rz
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
FEEBE: [NEEDABERRE  FEE/MHOABEES EGHOAREER  meM0E4-S% dH423E41528
(T#8E])
Net asset Fair value of individual assest ~ The higher estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the Ranging from Ranging from
value approach less libiltes (the “Net  higher the estimated fai vlue H1% 104 5% +HI3 104,228
Assets”)
fEER0C
Designated FVOCI
LRSS 14044 THERY  FRREERE EREREREAS +-5% 46,07
Equity securities, unlisted HRABERR  RaTR-
PIS ratio model  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
RLEVCPES: Tk S NGRS T-E SRV -k H-43% 447,698

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

R
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice verss;

298 EEEZERERAF

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



=
13

WIN

S B HEERERMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

(a) UAABHEIENLSREERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TEFABRERARRBREZEE Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(& inputs (Continued)
MEERAZE
KEERE
hEsENTE
Impact on fair
20198 value and
12A3182 the Group's
MERE total
Fair value FIRREANRRULAREN GRS comprehensive
at 31 December (ERARERRATR) income for
w1y HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AgsT7  Valuation  FTEEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably AEEFT
Description AMBO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
BAPLRBNEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEES 425698 EBDARE EREEERE EEREMARELR +-10% 49,084
Investment funds EDAEBER RN
EBITDA Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
multiple model the fair value and vice versa;
ARAAZFAMIA  THRAAZPABI0ANS - ELABEER 8% +7,884
Rz
Average EBITDA of comparable  The higher average EBITDA of comparable companies,
companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
TEEEY  RHERRE EREMERENE  ADABEER RNA: 5% 42,528
PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
ApEAT TamEE  ARELAZ AR ERES  ARERER: +31% #1579
Rz
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
R AVOC
Designated FVOCI
S FERAZE 15614 THEEEY EEESERE BEEENERRRARZER +1-5% 44,362
Equity securities, unlisted HMABEER R«
PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
pEAA TamEE  AREAA AR ERES  ARERER +-36% +31,158

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

Rzmdk:
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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(a)

(b)
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(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2020.
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In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the
commitments as follow:

BT HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2020 2019
AR¥FT AREFT
EEEEESE T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWE  HMER Expenditures on property,
BB plant and equipment 672,014 650,104
"EHES Investment funds — 12,296

672,014 662,400
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REBFBERRNANBEEMRT AR

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

AIFBEARRAR L AR ZEE IR

N Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2020 2019
o3 AR¥TFT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
IREBEE Non-current assets
LT SE Property, plant and equipment 353 415
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,349 530
M B A Al RE Interest in subsidiaries 11,507,436 12,691,224
RFVPLERIEN S REEE Financial assets at FVPL 558,375 425,980
JEER FVOCI BRI Equity instruments designated
HmT A as at FVOCl 8,791 7,428
12,078,304 13,125,577
REEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 81,587 10,868
bt B~ B 2 FEUR kIR Amount due from a subsidiary 2,981,857 3,037,521
IRITEH MRS Bank balances and cash 187,692 154,929
3,251,136 3,203,318
WEE Total assets 15,329,440 16,328,895
BRREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RAR #E Capital and reserves
BATARAR Issued capital 235,422 235,401
Bz (B Share premium 730,075 724,384
1 Reserves 46(a) 3,937,100 5,681,607
RERERAE Total equity 4,902,597 6,641,392
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2020 2019
i3 ARTFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
REIE BEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 7,336,108 4,363,063
HERE Lease liabilities 1,634 213
7,337,742 4,363,276
REEE Current liabilities
H At B3R Other payables 76,900 78,929
BEEEEZAEBES Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 3,010,508 5,244,973
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,693 325
3,089,101 5,324,227
maE Total liabilities 10,426,843 9,687,503
REREZAEREBEHLE  Total equity and liabilities 15,329,440 16,328,895
KRN EKNR2021F3 A22HE The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
T EMRERE AU TA for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2021 and signed
TREEZ on its behalf by
#% & Wei Hong-Ming FH#A— BB Junichiro Ida
ZE EDirector EZEDjrector
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(a) REZEH (@) Movements of the reserves
&
EfbERE
RORERE EfERE MMEERE (TUED) EBRERE REER L]
Investment
revaluation
Capital  Remeasur-  Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption ement  translation (Non-  payment  Retained
reserve reserve reserve  recycling)  reserve Profits Total
ARETL ARETL AREFT AREFr AREFI AREFZ AREFZ
RMB000 ~ RMBO00  RMBU00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB000
#0198 1 A1 At 1 January 2019 400 (36,534) 234,393 (4.230) 42239 7312116 7928540
TERET Profit for the year - - - - — 178494 17849
AEEEM2AE(ER) NG Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year - 36,534 (18,054) 4,037 — (36534)  (14,017)
ERtEROTHIFR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
BIRHEABYE Employee benefits obligations borne
MEBLERE by subsidiaries - - - - - 41,487 41487
BERERET SR RN Shares issuied under share option scheme - - — — (14,080 — (14,080
BREXN Shares option lapsed - - - - (40,574) 40,574 —
BRERIEE 20185KE 2018 final and special dividend
RERIRE approved and paid - - - - = (2463321)  (463321)
R2019E12 4318 At 31 December 2019 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
R202051A18 At 1 January 2020 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
RERRT Profitfor the year - - - - — 1273400 1,273,400
REEEMZENE Other comprehensive income for the year - — 29655 1,859 - — 298409
ERtEROITHZFR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
RiEERE AR RN Shares issuied under share option scheme - - — - (1383) - (1383)
BREXK Shares option lapsed - - - —  (55%) 7555 -
BHERIEE 20195 R 2019 final and special dividend
REHIRE approved and paid - - - - —  (3330981) (3,330981)
R2020512 4318 At 31 December 2020 400 - 512,889 1,666 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100

7 2020F 128318 ARF A D
Bl BEEREREB RN ERGE®E
2 &%/ ANRM3,820,866,0007T
(20194 : A K& #5,797,200,000

L) e
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At 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB3,820,866,000 (2019: RMB5,797,200,000).
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EHZE2020F 12 A31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or

indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,

are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial

portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that

giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of

excess length.

BaliTAVe
8 EXHE AMER/BRITRE JEft BRAELL bl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
RHBHERRBVERAR RERLES Us$2 100% —  REBR
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRRARAR PE US$72,000,000 - 100% SHERHETRE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* NERRRARAA HE US$151,500,000 - 100% BERHELRAE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EREARRARAR PE US$17,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERERMARAR HE US$17,800,000 - 100% BERHESRE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RZRERRARLA PE US$44,300,000 - 100% SHERHERE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
KEEEERRARAR HE US$14,200,000 - 100% BERHELRAE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RYERRRARAR G US$21,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BRRERRARLA HE US$14,000,000 - 100% BERHELRAE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* REBERIRRRERAR HE US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant

Convenient Food Co., Ltd. *

noodles
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Y/
£ EXuE &R/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* RHEER I RRAERLT HE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd.* noodles
TFEERMARAT hE US$29,000,000 - 100% BERHENRAE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RBRERRARLA HE US$17,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* FERERAARAR PE US$3,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
* XinJiang TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RHEER T RRAARAT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
* Master Kong (Chongging) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* DAERRAAERAA HE US$50,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EFEGRmARATA HE US$22,000,000 - 100% BERHELRAE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
FHEARERE(EERD hE US$227,500,000 - 100% RERK
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
ENEAERSREHEERL G U5$98,900,000 - 100% RE#R
Master Kong Instant Foods Investmem PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERRARAA HE US$37,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant food
RHESREVIERAR RERAEE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RABRGIERERAT REEE US$10,527.37 30.40% 4151% AR
KSF Beverage Ho\ding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* REBRRMARD HE US$60,840,000 - 7191% SERHEESM
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

EEERRAERAE
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Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
BAERRqAN G US$20,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Guangzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REERZRMARD hE US$73,500,000 7191% SERHEEAR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFE2RmAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEEERARARA G US$15,000,000 7191% BEREERS
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZRMARD hE US$13,700,000 7191% SERHEELR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERRGERAT i US$33,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* AEEZR AN G US$10,000,000 7191% SERHEESR
* Hefei Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. i PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERRmAN G US$12,000,000 71.91% RERHEERR
* Kunming T\ngjm Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BMERRAN G US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEESM
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BNERARARA PE US$16,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEERRRERAA HE US$41,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FIBERHHERAT i US$48,500,000 7191% BEREERS
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EIBRRHGERAT G US$31,800,000 7191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* AR R AN G US$36,500,000 71.91% RERHEESR
* Yangzhou ngjm Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERAmAR AR G US$59,300,000 7191% RERHEESM
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REIE (REAE S MERAT i US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERS
* Master Kong (URUMQI) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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L/
£ EXHE ihEk/ ERfTRE JEft IR iELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
* BYTERRRAD PE US$28,500,000 71.91% SERHEESR
* Langfang ng in Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMEZRRAD e US$41,500,000 T191% SERHEESM
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* fMERRRAD PE US$38,100,000 71.91% RERHEEAR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHERRRE(FEERAA HE US$196,677,000 7191% REER
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
PRERLR (BA) ARAF Bk Us$2 11.91%  RERR
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRERRAT® e US$358,216,517 1191% REER
Master Kong PBB Investment Ltd. PRC Investment holding
BEHE (EM) BRAF PE US$197,800,000 T191% BERHERR
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBETEHHARLA HE US$66,650,000 77191% BEREERD
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERBETRBHARLA HE US$14,119,449 5064% BEREERD
* Bejing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERZURHHARLA HE US$20,000,000 6763% HEREERR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REAZURHHARAT ket RMB100,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RABESHHARAA PE US$6,600,000 7191% SERHEELM
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEEHHARLA e US$1,350,000 7191% SERHEELR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERREAMSHARLA HE US$17,845,000 1354% BEREERD
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Company Limited  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
A EZUERHERAT HE US$12,250,000 7191% RERHEERR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N BETRHHARAA HE US$10,400,000 3896% HERHEESRR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBZTRHHARAT HE US$28,000,000 7191% BEREERR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERREARIHERLA) PE US$14,694,778 7191% SERHEERR
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

EEERRAERAE
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Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
BNBZTEBHARLA G RMB19,764,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEH (B8) BRAA hE US$9,000,000 - 5454%  BEREERR
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEAEIRHHARAA i US$5,000,000 - 6233% BEREERD
* Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
I EERHARLA G US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Co., Ltd.f PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRERETARHARLA G US$35,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
E&EVIERERAR RERLES US$50,000 100% —  REZR
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Investment holding
TEAEVIERAR RERLES US$1,000 100% —  REZR
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
RO ERHBVIARLT RERIHS Us$1 100% —  RARRK
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
EHRERRAA RERAES US$147,232,000 - 100%  BARR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
REBRARARAT RERAES ISy 100% — REAR
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRERARAA G US$135,000,000 - 100% REDEEERSE
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration ~ PRC Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
RREEHABRAA hE U$$200,000 100% —  REEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* SEWB AT ERARIEE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
) companies.
# N BEE O AR # English translation for identification purposes only.
@ WAL ATE(hE)EEER AT @ Formerly known as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.

Hit NEBRPBEHEAZHE QA
BRI KA REEINERE

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BABTBEEISHTIRES 4218
Tel |35 : (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 140 to 309, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,935 million at 31 December 2020. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2020 was RMB12,457 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. An impairment loss of RMB66 million has been recognised
for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2020.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and a contractual
arrangement in 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity interest in
HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over
HZPS. Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management
concluded that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to
use its power over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial
statements of HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in 2017. Management performs an annual impairment test on goodwill.
The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the recoverable
amount of CGU will be determined by management based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations involved
significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash flows,
discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and impairment assessment of
goodwill as key audit matters because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation
involved in determination of control over HZPS and accounting for
any impairment on goodwill which involves significant degree of
management judgement in determining key assumptions applied in
estimating recoverable amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement;

Obtaining an updated legal opinion from the legal expert of
the Group's internal legal department to ascertain the legal
enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC; and

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Group's legal expert.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of

goodwill included:

a)

b)

Assessing the value in use calculation methodology;

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used;
and

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2020 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
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the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Bt EEERNEBXEBIDMNH e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
BEHERRED  BENETR financial information of the entities and business activities within
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the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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fA ° control that we identify during our audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. www.mazars.hk
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to 309, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSASs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Mazars CPA Limited
hif IR &) SR EEREIRAT
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB21,935 million at 31
December 2020. Of which, the carrying amount of the
Group’s machinery and equipment as at 31 December
2020 was RMB12,457 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements. An impairment loss of
RMBE6 million has been recognised for certain machinery
and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed
internal and external sources of information, including but
not limited to technical obsolescence to usage, significant
change in use of assets with adverse effect on the Group,
prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than
expected, to assess whether there is any indication that
machinery and equipment may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be
conducted. The carrying amounts of the assets will be
written down to their recoverable amounts which are the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable
amounts of the cash generating units (“CGUs") to which
the assets belong principally based on their value in use
or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable amount of
certain individual assets with reference to their fair value
less costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and
equipment as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the
determination of the key assumptions applied in the
impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in
relation to management's impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

a) Discussing the process and basis used to identify
indicators of impairment of machinery and equipment
with management and reviewing utilisation records
and profitability of machinery and equipment, where
such indicators were identified, assessing whether
management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b) Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model applied by the management in calculating the
impairment charges and the judgments applied in
determining the CGUs to which the assets belong;

c) Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted
cash flow model used in the value in use calculation;

d) Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the food and beverage
industry and market;

e) Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as future production plans and approved budgets and
assessing the reasonableness and feasibility of such
plans and budgets;

f) Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of
disposal by making reference to the market price of
an active market, if applicable; and

g) Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
in respect of the impairment assessment.
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(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd
(“HZPS”) and impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group through an execution of sale and purchase
agreement (the “SPA”") and a contractual arrangement in
2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity interest in
HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount
of judgement and estimations, including the
determination of control over HZPS. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its
control over HZPS. Based on the results of the
re-assessment, the management concluded that the
Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the
ability to use its power over HZPS to affect its returns.
Therefore, the financial statements of HZPS continue to
be consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from
the acquisition in 2017. Management performs an
annual impairment test on goodwill. The goodwill was
allocated to related CGU, and the recoverable amount of
CGU will be determined by management based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projection. The
calculations  involved  significant judgement and
estimations, such as forecast cash flows, discount rates
and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and impairment
assessment of goodwill as key audit matters because of
their significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the judgement and estimation involved in
determination of control over HZPS and accounting for
any impairment on goodwill which involves significant
degree of management judgement in determining key
assumptions applied in estimating recoverable amounts
based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 18 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS
included:

a) Discussing with the management to identify any facts
and circumstances that indicate changes of the
Group’s control over HZPS;

b) Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group's
re-assessment on its control over HZPS;

¢) Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to
ascertain the existence of rights and benefits the
Group entitled to through the execution of the SPA
and the contractual arrangement;

d) Obtaining an updated legal opinion from the legal
expert of the Group's internal legal department to
ascertain the legal enforceability of the contractual
arrangement in the PRC; and

e) Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Group’s legal expert.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability
assessment of goodwill included:

a) Assessing the value in use calculation methodology;

b) Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge and understanding of the
business and market;

c) Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow
model used; and

d) Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of the budgets.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information in the 2020 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance areresponsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law and regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Q2e

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
Chan Chi Ming Andy

Practising Certificate number: P05132
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